
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

April 17, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
 

 

MAYOR: Jim Schwartz       CITY MANAGER: Derek N. Perry 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Joe Caron, Theresa Chaney-Huggett, Jacob Gates, 

Ryan Traver, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger 
Board of Commission Chambers, 315 W Green St, Marshall, Michigan 49068 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER  
2) ROLL CALL  
3) INVOCATION Devon Shephard- Woodland Church 
4) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Items can be added or deleted from the Agenda by City Council action.  
6) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing City Council are required to give their name and 

address for the record when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) 
minutes. Comments should address AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the PUBLIC HEARING 
portion (Item 10) of the meeting agenda. Non-Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-NON-AGENDA 
ITEMS (Item 14) portion of the meeting agenda. 

7) CONSENT AGENDA  
 A. City Council Minutes 

Work Session- April 3, 2023 
Regular Session- April 3, 2023 

 B. City Bills 
Purchases- 3/31/2023 $52,445.78 
Purchases- 4/4/2023 $83,654.05 
Purchases- 4/6/2023 $21,905.65 
Purchases- 4/18/2023 $227,525.75 
TOTAL $385,531.23 

8) PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS  
9) INFORMATIONAL ITEMS  
10) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION  
 A. PA 425 CONDITIONAL LAND TRANSFER REQUESTS (MARSHALL 

TOWNSHIP) 
 B. 421/423 MITCHELL SPECIAL LAND USE 
11) OLD BUSINESS  
12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
 A. SITE PLAN REVIEW CONTRACT FOR BLUEOVAL BATTERY PARK 

PROJECT 
 B. SCHEDULE REZONING PUBLIC HEARING FOR 425 PARCELS FROM 

MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 C. COMMUNITY RISK ASSESSMENT & REDUCTION GRANT APPLICATION 
 D. P.A. 116 PROGRAM TERMINATION- PROPERTY OWNER REQUEST 

Page 1 of 215



 E. MARSHALL HOUSE PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT 
13) APPOINTMENTS / ELECTIONS  
14) PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing City Council are required to give their name and address for the record when 

called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) minutes. Comments should 
address NON-AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the PUBLIC HEARING portion (Item 10) of 
the meeting agenda. Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-AGENDA ITEMS (Item 6) portion of the 
meeting agenda. 

15) COUNCIL AND MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS  
16) ADJOURNMENT  

 

Page 2 of 215



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
April 3, 2023 

Work Session - 6:00 PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER   
 IN A WORK SESSIONS held on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Council 

Chambers of Town Hall, 323 West Michigan Ave, Marshall, MI 49068, the Marshall City 
Council was called to order by Mayor Schwartz. 

2) ROLL CALL   
 Roll was called: 

 
Present: Mayor James Schwartz, Joe Caron, Jacob Gates, Ryan Underhill, Scott 
Wolfersberger 
 
Also Present: Director Perry and Clerk Eubank 
 
Absent: Theresa Chaney-Huggett and Ryan Traver 

3) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS - Persons addressing Council are required to 
give their name and address for the record when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the 
public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) minutes on any agenda item.  

 NONE 
4) DISCUSSION ITEMS   
 

 

 A. AMP Smart Thermostat Program  
 Manager Perry gave background on the AMP Smart Thermostat program. The 

consensus of the board was not to pursue the program at this time. 
5) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

Persons addressing Council are required to give their name and address for the record 
when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a 
maximum of five (5) minutes on any item not on the agenda.  

 NONE 
6) ADJOURNMENT   
 The meeting was adjourned at 6:14 p.m. 

 

Page 3 of 215



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
April 3, 2023 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER   
 IN A REGULAR SESSIONS held on Monday, April 3, 2023 at 7:00 PM in the Board of 

Commission Chambers of the Marshall County Building, 315 W Green St, Marshall, MI 
49068, the Marshall City Council was called to order by Mayor James Schwartz. 

2) ROLL CALL   
 Roll was called: 

 
Present: Mayor James Schwartz, Joe Caron, Jacob Gates, Ryan Underhill, Scott 
Wolfersberger 
 
Also Present: Manager Perry and Clerk Eubank 
 
Absent: Theresa Chaney-Huggett and Ryan Traver 
 
Moved Caron, supported Gates to excuse members Chaney-Hugget and Traver from 
the April 3, 2023 meeting. On a voice vote; Motion carried. 

3) INVOCATION   
 

 

4) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 Mayor Schwartz led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Items can be added or deleted from the Agenda by City Council action.   
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Jacob Gates to approve the agenda striking Item 12C-

AMP Smart thermostat program. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 
6) PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing City Council are required to give their name and 

address for the record when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum of five (5) 
minutes. Comments should address AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the PUBLIC HEARING 
portion (Item 10) of the meeting agenda. Non-Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-NON-AGENDA 
ITEMS (Item 14) portion of the meeting agenda.  

 Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green St spoke in opposition to Ordinance 2023-07 and 
the land transfers. 
 
Debra Monyer stated that Jason Blanchard did not speak in opposition to the megasite 
at the previous meeting, he was presenting information. 
 
Maggie Emerson-Rich of 616 Union St questioned the OPRA agreement for 125-127 W 
Michigan Ave. 
 
Mark Robinson of 1114 Fennimore stated that he would like the public hearing for the 
land transfers to be at a different time than the township meeting.  

7) CONSENT AGENDA   
 Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Joe Caron to approve the consent agenda as 

presented. On a roll call vote: 
  

Page 4 of 215



Ayes: Joe Caron, Jacob Gates, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, James Schwartz 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 

 A. City Council Minutes 
Work Session- March 20, 2023 
Regular Session - March 20, 2023  

 
 

 B. City Bills 
Purchases- 3/17/23 $74,348.16 
Purchases- 3/21/23 $187,349.83 
Purchases- 3/24/23 $132,034.27 
TOTAL  
   

 
 

8) PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS   
 

 

 A. DEPUTY CLERK INTRODUCTION AND OATH OF OFFICE  
 Clerk Eubank introduced Deputy Clerk Jennifer Pickford and administered the oath of 

office. 
 B. COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES MILLAGE ANNUAL REPORT  
 Helen Guzzo gave an update on services that were provided to Marshall residents from 

the Calhoun County Senior Millage. 
 C. CCCDA RECOGNITION PROCLAMATION   
 Mayor Schwartz issued a proclamation declaring April 9-15, 2023 National Public Safety 

Telecommunicators week in Marshall. 
9) INFORMATIONAL ITEMS   
 

 

 A. DISTRIBUTION OF FY 2024 PROPOSED BUDGET TO COUNCIL - 
SCHEDULE COUNCIL WORK SESSION  

 Moved Joe Caron, supported Scott Wolfersberger to receive the FY 2024 Proposed 
Budget and schedule a work session for Monday, May 1, 2023, at 6 PM to review and 
discuss. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

10) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION   
 

 

 A. SCHULER'S RENTAL REHABILITATION GRANT CLOSEOUT  
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on the close out of the Schuler's rental 

rehabilitation grant. 
 
Hearing no comment, Mayor Schwartz closed the public hearing on the close out of the 
Schuler's rental rehabilitation grant.  
 
Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Jacob Gates to approve the report closing out 
the Schuler's Rental Rehabilitation CDBG project. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

Page 5 of 215



 B. 125-127 WEST MICHIGAN AVENUE OPRA   
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on the 125-127 W Michigan OPRA. 

 
Emily Emerson Rich of 616 Union St spoke in opposition to the OPRA questioning how 
the lost tax revenue would be replaced and stated that she would like to see a shorter 
time period for the tax exemption. 
 
Maggie Emerson Rich of 616 Union St spoke in opposition to the OPRA stating that not 
only businesses need tax breaks and that everyone in town could use a break. 
 
Mayor Schwartz closed the public hearing on the 125-127 W Michigan OPRA.  
 
Moved Joe Caron, supported Ryan Underhill to approve Resolution 2023-11 authorizing 
the OPRA exemption request for the second floor of 125-127 West Michigan Avenue for 
a period of 12 years. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

 C. MARIHUANA ODOR ORDINANCE UPDATE  
 Mayor Schwartz opened the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-07. 

 
Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green St spoke in opposition of the proposed ordinance, 
stating that it was an over reach of police power and that it was unconstitutional. 
 
Emily Emerson Rich of 616 Union St questioned if it would apply to all marihuana 
facilities in the city. 
 
Mike McCarthy of 338 N Eagle spoke in favor of the proposed ordinance stating that the 
odor permeates his home and no smell of this type is ok. 
 
Maggie Emerson Rich of  616 Union St spoke in favor of the proposed ordinance. 
 
Justin Kazmar of 14200 18 1/2 Mile Rd stated that the fines were too small and 
recommended they be increased and that there is very little benefit from these facilities 
to the community. 
 
Mike Beck of Common Citizen, 11300 17 Mile Rd spoke in favor of the ordinance, stating 
that their facility works hard to minimize odor and they take complaints seriously. He 
believes that the use of the nasal ranger will be helpful as it is a tool commonly used by 
other municipalities and it eliminates subjectivity. 
 
Mayor Schwartz closed the public hearing on Ordinance 2023-07.  
 
Wolfersberger questioned how it would be determined which facility was the offending 
facility. Chief Lankerd stated that it would be a complete investigative process taking into 
account multiple factors. 
 
Moved Ryan Underhill, supported Jacob Gates to approve Ordinance 2023-07; An 
Ordinance To Amend The City Of Marshall Medical Marihuana Facilities Licensing Act 
(Mmfla), Ordinance No. 2017-06, And Commercial Marihuana (Mrtma) Ordinance No. 
2019-06, And City Code Of Ordinances To Establish Parameters For The Prohibition Of 
Odors Emanating From Properties, To Establish Penalties For Violations Thereof; To 
Repeal Any Ordinances In Conflict Thereof; And To Provide An Effective Date Hereof. 

Page 6 of 215



On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes: Jacob Gates, Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, James Schwartz, Joe Caron 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 
  

11) OLD BUSINESS   
 

 

12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS   
 

 

 A. PA 425 CONDITIONAL LAND TRANSFER REQUESTS (MARSHALL 
TOWNSHIP)- INTRODUCTION AND SET PUBLIC HEARING  

 Moved Jacob Gates, supported Scott Wolfersberger to introduce and set a public 
hearing for April 17, 2023 at 7 p.m, to be held at the Marshall County Building, to hear 
comments on a Public Act 425 Conditional Land Transfer for the following parcels: 16-
290-021-01, 16-290-021-02, 16-290-021-03, 16-201-018-00, 16-290-012-00, 16-290-
015-00, 16-281-015-00, 16-281-015-03, 16-281-015-04, 16-290-021-05, 16-290-021-
04, 16-281-015-01, 16-281-015-02, 16-281-015-05, 16-190-006-01, 16-193-003-00, 16-
193-006-00, 16-193-009-00, 16-300-006-00, 16-300-018-00, 16-300-021-00. On a voice 
vote: Motion carried. 

 B. 421/423 MITCHELL SPECIAL LAND USE- SET PUBLIC HEARING  
 Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Joe Caron to set a public hearing for April 17, 

2023 at 7:00 PM to consider the approval of a Special Land Use for the addition of a 
self-storage facility at 421 and 423 Mitchell Street. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

 C. AMP SMART THERMOSTAT PROGRAM  
 This item was stricken from the agenda with action taken during item 5-approval of the 

agenda. 
 D. MICHIGAN AMP BOARD OF TRUSTEES ALTERNATE APPOINTMENT  
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Ryan Underhill to approve Resolution 2023-13 to appoint 

Director of Electric Utilities Kevin Maynard to represent the City of Marshall as the 
Michigan alternate on the AMP Board of Trustees. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

 E. LEAD LINE SERVICE REPLACEMENT AND INVESTIGATION  
 Moved Joe Caron, supported Ryan Underhill to approve the contract with Quality 

Excavators Inc. of Marshall in the amount of $103,540 and proceed with the State-
mandated lead service replacement and investigation program. On a roll call vote: 
  
Ayes: Ryan Underhill, Scott Wolfersberger, James Schwartz, Joe Caron, Jacob Gates 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Motion carried. 

 F. FARMERS MARKET GRANT SUBMISSION REQUEST  
 Moved Jacob Gates, supported Joe Caron to approve the mini-grant submission by the 

Marshall Area Farmers Market to the Calhoun County Senior Millage Committee in the 
amount of $5,000. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

Page 7 of 215



 G. TITLE VI NON-DISCRIMINATION PLAN UPDATE  
 Moved Scott Wolfersberger, supported Joe Caron to approve the attached revised Title 

VI Non-Discrimination Plan and direct the City Manager to submit to the State of 
Michigan Statewide Title VI Coordinator. On a voice vote: Motion carried. 

13) APPOINTMENTS / ELECTIONS   
 

 

 A. MARSHALL DISTRICT LIBRARY BOARD REPRESENTATIVE 
APPOINTMENT   

 Moved Ryan Underhill, supported Joe Caron to re-appoint MJ Harting-Minkwic to the 
Marshall District Library Board for a three-year term expiring on March 31, 2026. On a 
voice vote: Motion carried. 

14) PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS Persons addressing City Council are required to give their 
name and address for the record when called upon by the Mayor. Members of the public shall be limited to speaking for a maximum 
of five (5) minutes. Comments should address NON-AGENDA ITEM topics. Public Hearing items should be addressed during the 
PUBLIC HEARING portion (Item 10) of the meeting agenda. Agenda items should be addressed during the PUBLIC COMMENT-
AGENDA ITEMS (Item 6) portion of the meeting agenda.  

 Julie Bryant of 159 Squaw Creek spoke in opposition to Ford. 
 
Barry Wayne Adams of 622 W Green St spoke in opposition to the megasite. 
 
Mike Woods of Marshall Township spoke in opposition to Ford. 
 
Rick Sadlerof 159 Squaw Creek stated that he believes the local area officials have 
forgotten how to be buddies and take care of the people. 
 
Debra Monyer spoke in opposition to Ford. 
 
Mark Robinson of 1114 Fennimore spoke in opposition to Ford. 
 
Maggie Emerson Rich of 616 Union St spoke in opposition to the megasite and stated 
that for what residents pay in taxes there should be better services. 
 
Justin Kazmar of 14200 18 1/2 Mile Rd spoke in opposition to the megasite. 
 
Emily Emerson Rich of 616 Union St spoke in opposition to the megasite, NDAs, and 
the timing of the township and city meetings. 
  

15) COUNCIL AND MANAGER COMMUNICATIONS   
 Wolfersberger stated that he personally had never signed nor been presented with an 

NDA. 
 
Schwartz stated that the city is preparing for the chance of inclement weather later in the 
week. 

16) ADJOURNMENT   
 The meeting was adjourned at 9:09 p.m. 

 

Page 8 of 215



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/1Page:03/31/2023 12:25 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 03/31/2023 - 03/31/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

100.00 REIMBURSEMENT FOR PORTION OF WORK BOOT PURCHASEAALBERTS, BENJAMIN03272023
50.00 UB refund for account: 2971ANDREW PORTER03/31/2023
107.35 ACCT NO. 145970911 MRLEC INTERNET MARCH 2023AT&T 03172023

1,015.00 SCHULER'S RENTAL REHAB PROJECT - ADMINCARTER CONSULTING, LLC03312023
209.19 ACCT NO. 1000 9033 6411 AIRPORT MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203944539378
909.57 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3435 CITY HALL MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201363824492

1,679.42 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3971 DPW MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201363824494
528.20 ACCT NO. 1000 0759 4680 DPW MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY202253724213

1,033.42 ACCT NO. 1030 1580 0248 FIRE STATION MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY202164718565
320.90 ACCT NO. 1000 8921 1096 KP FIRE PLACE MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203855554476

5,022.64 ACCT NO. 1000 0033 5602 MARSHALL HOUSE MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY206969648640
4,207.92 ACCT NO. 1030 1852 1130 MRLEC MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY206880739255
1,457.01 ACCT NO. 1030 1852 0884 MRLEC BARN MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203143629425

545.36 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3203 WASTE WATER MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY203232633468
417.91 ACCT NO. 1000 0916 3708 WASTE WATER MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY201363824493
20.90 ACCT NO. 1030 1352 1119 WASTE WATER LIFT MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY202342717760
721.81 ACCT NO. 1000 7224 3312 WATER PLANT MARCH 2023CONSUMERS ENERGY206613945781
47.89 ACCT NO. CIMA1 JANITORIAL SUPPLIESD & D MAINTENANCE SUPPLY172835
106.96 ACCT NO. CIMA1 JANITORIAL SUPPLIESD & D MAINTENANCE SUPPLY173151
135.00 ACCT NO. CIMA1 JANITORIAL SUPPLIESD & D MAINTENANCE SUPPLY173214
210.97 UB refund for account: 3004060031FENNER, TAYLOR03/31/2023
386.58 CUST NO. 2868 FLANGE KITSFERGUSON WATERWORKS #33860173463
35.00 ACCT NO. 3542611 SERVICES AT CITY HALL 2/24/23GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS2327628

4,431.60 2023.124MRLEC SNOW REMOVAL AND SIDEWALK SALTING FOR 2022-2023 SEASON  GUTTERS R US, LLC24029
2,350.00 2023.125MARSHALL HOUSE SNOW REMOVAL AND SIDEWALK SALTING FOR 2022-2023 SEASON  GUTTERS R US, LLC24030

9.57 UB refund for account: 300480003HALEY, LYNNE03/31/2023
91.16 UB refund for account: 3005160022HATFIELD, ROBERT03/31/2023
16.04 UB refund for account: 3202800042HILLMAN, LORI03/31/2023
67.05 UB refund for account: 3003270039HUCK, ANDREW03/31/2023
17.60 UB refund for account: 1875KIM SHELDON03/31/2023

1,459.10 CITY OF MARSHALL FIRE UNIFORMSLANSING UNIFORM COMPANY89037-A
880.32 CITY CREDIT CARD - CHRISTY A RAMEY 3101MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023CAR
114.39 CITY CREDIT CARD - CITY OF MARSHALL 3431MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023COM
347.00 CITY CREDIT CARD - DEREK PERRY 0186MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023DP
179.39 CITY CREDIT CARD - ERIC ZUZGA 3119MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023EZ
387.00 CITY CREDIT CARD - CITY OF MARSHALL FIBERNET 3297MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023COMFN

1,557.76 CITY CREDIT CARD - JOSHUA LANKERD 3280MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023JL
637.87 CITY CREDIT CARD - JUSTIN R MILLER 9156MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023JRM
328.06 CITY CREDIT CARD - MARTIN ERSKINE 9519MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023ME
359.88 CITY CREDIT CARD - WILLIAM DOPP III 9493MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023WD
36.73 CUST NO. 979 175W MV LAMPMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5139648.001

13,810.00 2022.005DESIGN AND ENGINEERING OF GREEN STREET RECONSTRUCTIONPROGRESSIVE AE00192057
88.00 ELECTRIC DEPT - 2 YDS OF GRAVEL (W/O TAXES)QUALITY EXCAVATORS, INC23-1086
19.69 UB refund for account: 2302620010REYNOLDS, LESA03/31/2023
30.96 UB refund for account: 1900830028ROGERS, HANS03/31/2023
1.36 UB refund for account: 2900410030SHERMAN, RACHELLE03/31/2023

3,498.00 2023.163ELECTRIC LINE CLEARANCE (3-PERSON $132/HR & 2-PERSON $110/HR)  TOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC156-A
1,056.00 STREET DEPT TREE REMOVAL & TRIM ON MICHIGAN AVE (MDOT)TOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC156-B

113.02 CUST NO. 9066352 FLAME RESISTANT SAFETY VESTSULINE161266681
64.78 UB refund for account: 1102140010WAIT, MATT03/31/2023

1,072.50 2023.196BROOKS FOUNTAIN INVESTIGATION, RESEARCH, AND PROJECT PREPARATIONWJE  WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC0541258
105.25 ACCT NO. 010040510 POWER HOUSE TECH VISITWOW! BUSINESS03172023
46.70 ACCT NO. 013934621 DPW APRIL 2023WOW! BUSINESS03242023

52,445.78 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 9 of 215



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/1Page:04/03/2023 05:29 PM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/04/2023 - 04/04/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

59.00 BOOT ALLOWANCE - HUG, ERINAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1K4J-9KPK-HYDQ
190.05 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CARPET CLEANERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1FRV-TPYM-KDFJ
34.05 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 HDMI CABLE & EXPO MARKERSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1K4J-9KPK-KHVX
84.25 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 KEYCHAINS, ENVELOPES, LABELSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1CVR-P7MN-4GP1
83.13 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 OFFICE SUPPLIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1441-PTTF-31FW
229.95 GARAGE/STREETS - M18 STARTER KIT & CHARGERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-504894
24.37 GARAGE/STREETS - FUEL FILTERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505022
119.15 GARAGE/STREETS - FUEL FILTER, DIESEL ADDITIVEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505055

46,917.92 2023.1642023 Q2 CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH CALLS FOR SERVICECALHOUN CO. CONSOLIDATED DISPATCH773
30.55 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNETDARLING ACE HARDWARE614898
15.98 CUST NO. 1650 - WASTE WATERDARLING ACE HARDWARE614906
9.56 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSEDARLING ACE HARDWARE615162

52.97 CUST NO. 1650 - PSBDARLING ACE HARDWARE615224
6.38 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNETDARLING ACE HARDWARE615212

44.99 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNETDARLING ACE HARDWARE615333
5,794.09 2023.089ROAD SALT FOR 2022/2023 SEASON - MIDEAL CONTRACTDETROIT SALT COMPANYSI23-20773

47.82 CUST NO. MIBAT1561 GARAGE SUPPLIESFASTENAL COMPANYMIBAT328239
851.74 ACCT NO. 0000571644 200' DROPGRAYBAR ELECTRIC9331300810

4,390.31 2022.046ENGINEERING SERVICES - BROOKS SUBSTATIONGRP ENGINEERING, INC.20230169
1,500.00 2022.236ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR 5 KV VOLTAGE CONVERSION GRP ENGINEERING, INC.20230170

990.00 MARSHALL HOUSE CARPET CLEANING - 3RD FLOORISAAC & SONS03152023
33.91 WATER DEPT - PIPE & FITTINGSJ AND K PLUMBING SUPPLY30289

1,200.00 PROJECT 100983.LOT PEARL ST V/LKEBS, INC.74065
270.64 1.99 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42053
356.32 2.62 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42063
170.00 1.25 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42072
118.06 1.00 TONS COLD PATCHLAKELAND ASPHALT CORPORATION42075
129.87 CUST NO. 59879658 GASLINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT, INC.34899146
101.35 CITY CREDIT CARD - MARGUERITE DAVENPORT 4353MARSHALL COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION03102023MD
276.00 SCREEN PRINTING ON 19 VESTS & 5 SWEATSHIRTSMARSHALL CUSTOM EMBROIDERY47003
57.99 AIRPORT - AMERICAN FLAGMARSHALL HARDWARE, LLC002420
259.52 STREETS - CLEANING SUPPLIES, BATTERIES, HARDWAREMARSHALL HARDWARE, LLC002381
28.27 GARAGE - STEEL WOOL, MARKER, TAPEMARSHALL HARDWARE, LLC002408
186.87 ACCT NO. 188371900 MARKING PAINTMCMASTER-CARR94622721
527.35 CUST NO. 979 150W HPS LAMPMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5172534.003
30.27 CUST NO. 02356117 SAFETY VESTSMSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO.97917826
86.98 ACCT NO. 26140 COPY PAPEROFFICE 3602537226
260.94 ACCT NO. 26140 COPY PAPEROFFICE 3602545897
116.40 CUST ID: 100402 5/8" X 22" BOLTPOWER LINE SUPPLY56729511
50.00 CUST ID: 100402 GROUND MOLDINGPOWER LINE SUPPLY56729860
995.00 CUST ID: 100402 CLIMBING BELTPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731076
446.20 CUST ID: 100402 T- BRACKETPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731290
600.17 CUST ID: 100402 ELECTRIC INVENTORYPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731291
28.33 CUST ID: 100402 TERRY TOPPERSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731292
216.78 CUST ID: 100402 JUMPER SLEEVEPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731378
41.72 CUST ID: 100402 GAFF GUARDPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731379
216.37 CUST ID: 100402 HELMET & GEARPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731578
232.51 CUST ID: 100402 PLIERS & RULERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56731591

2,465.00 REPAIR FOR DAMAGE CAUSED BY BORING CONTRACTOR (S. MARSHALL & E. HUGHES)QUALITY EXCAVATORS, INC23-1106
490.00 SERVICE CALL AT PSB FOR UNIT AMBIENT CONTROL ISSUES 3/19/23R.W. LAPINE INC.48258

5,753.46 2023.213LABOR & PARTS TO REPAIR MUA UNIT AT PSBR.W. LAPINE INC.48297
2,321.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL367 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS/CHARGE/HYDRO TEST - POWER HOUSESUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012227

205.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL368 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS - PSBSUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012228
305.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL499 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS - CITY HALLSUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012230
157.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL71 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS - AIRPORTSUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012231
189.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL364 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS - GARAGESUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012226
54.37 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059030
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059027
166.61 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBER 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059029
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059028
44.29 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059025
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 3/15/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059031
49.37 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059729
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW/GARAGE 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059726
166.61 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC/FIBERNET 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059728
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059727
34.54 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059724
36.07 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 3/22/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620059730
257.00 SERVICE CALL TO WASTE WATER FOR GATE 3/3/23VAN'T HOF DOOR & GATE SYSTEMS22540

2,146.29 ANNUAL INSPECTION & MAINTENANCE OF OUTDOOR WARNING SIRENSWEST SHORE SERVICES, INC.30865
83,654.05 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 10 of 215



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/1Page:04/06/2023 11:11 AM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/06/2023 - 04/06/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

143.52 CONTRACT NO. 132-1753516-000 MRLEC COPIERAPPLIED CAPITAL, LLC33731872
4.64 PRE CHANGE - INVOICE 154-23CALHOUN COUNTY TREASURER04032023

100.85 UB refund for account: 1400500022CASSIDY, LUKE04/06/2023
900.00 CITY OF MARSHALL INSPECTION SERVICES MARCH 2023CB HALL ELECTRIC COMPANY04032023
290.00 CUST ID: MARSH PD - COBAN CAMERA REPAIREMERGENCY VEHICLE PRODUCTS S0017119
50.00 UB refund for account: 2372EMILY MARSHALL04/06/2023

13,117.00 FIRE ESCROW WITHHOLDING - GARY ROOT 314 S. LINDEN STREETESTATE OF GARY ROOT04072023
165.50 ACCT NO. 536494 3 BOX WRCHFERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC #33260234204
19.01 UB refund for account: 301880003GIBBS AGCY-MEEMIC INS04/06/2023
565.00 2017 FORD EXPLORER WINDSHIELD REPLACEMENTHARMON GLASS DOCTOR4402-808991
18.46 UB refund for account: 310716009HIATT, KEES04/06/2023
64.90 ACCT NO. 888907 MOTOR VEHICLE REPORTS/ACCESS FEEIIX INSURANCE INFORMATION EXCHANGE4076254
50.00 UB refund for account: 990JOE DEPPE04/06/2023
233.09 UB refund for account: 400920016KIDDER, MADISON04/06/2023
375.00 PPCT TRAINING RE-CERTIFICATION - HYDE, BRIANNAKNRCONTROL, LLCMAR104
44.36 UB refund for account: 701720027KRUG, DANIEL04/06/2023
44.12 UB refund for account: 1503MARK MESERVEY04/06/2023
17.89 REIMBURSEMENT FOR TRAINING MEAL - POTTER, MATTPOTTER, MATT04042023
136.04 UB refund for account: 1802140018RANDELS, BENJAMIN04/06/2023
89.97 UB refund for account: 3205060018SCHRUBEN, KELSEY04/06/2023
13.59 UB refund for account: 310804002SPENCE, SETH04/06/2023
121.00 CUST ID: MARSHAL261 FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTIONS - WATER PLANTSUMMIT FIRE PROTECTION141012224

2,508.00 2023.163ELECTRIC LINE CLEARANCE (3-PERSON $132/HR & 2-PERSON $110/HR)  TOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC157-A
660.00 STREET DEPT TREE REMOVAL ON MANSION STREETTOP TO BOTTOM TREE SERVICE, LLC157-B
569.98 ACCT NO. 6035 3012 0359 5572 FANSTRACTOR SUPPLY CREDIT PLAN03302023
38.56 ACCT NO. MAR11 8 PORT GIGAPORT SWITCHVC3 INC103136
133.67 ACCT NO. 014226414 FIRE STATION APRIL 2023WOW! BUSINESS03292023

1,431.50 ACCT NO. 010040764 MARSHALL HOUSE APRIL 2023WOW! INTERNET-CABLE-PHONE04022023
21,905.65 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 11 of 215



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 1/2Page:04/14/2023 09:09 AM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/18/2023 - 04/18/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

1,554.84 CUST NO. 100413 WATER PLANT CHEMICALS/SUPPLIESALEXANDER CHEMICAL CORPORATION66193
(19.71)ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CREDIT MEMO FOR BATTERIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1KDF-9V14-QRY4
(0.71)ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 CREDIT MEMO FOR FACE PAINT/CANE RACK RINGSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.16PC-6N3Y-41TL
114.99 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 TRAINING FOG SMOKEAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.19CR-7176-CPGV
54.44 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 STORM SIGNSAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1QF1-YRL3-9KXY
24.88 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 RECYCLING BINAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1MF7-3K9L-C1JN
31.98 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 BATTERIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.13KD-VTDW-W4QF
46.60 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 BINDERS, DOOR STOPPERAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1TQ6-XTNT-GLGV
233.46 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 OFFICE SUPPLIESAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1R6L-CVPP-H3PV
722.96 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 TRUECABLE CAT 6AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1HY3-NHRN-3PH6
369.36 ACCT NO. A1P4GM99HG1E02 SUPPLIES FOR REC MOM/SON EVENTAMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.1YGD-3M64-331W
964.85 GARAGE/STREETS - LED LAMP, OIL, FILTERS, L&G BATTERIESAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505404
145.18 GARAGE/STREETS - AIR FILTERSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505425
113.89 GARAGE/STREETS - OIL FILTER, OIL, METAL CAST REDAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505452
119.89 GARAGE/STREETS - MISC. SUPPLIESAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505634
31.78 GARAGE/STREETS - XL V BELTSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505646
73.38 GARAGE/STREETS - TRAILER BRITE, SIMPLE GREEN, SCOTCH-BRITEAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505693
48.57 GARAGE/STREETS - PRIMER, GLOSSAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505709
93.30 GARAGE/STREETS - AIR FILTER, OIL FILTER, OILAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505764
(8.37)GARAGE/STREETS - CREDIT MEMO FOR OIL FILTERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505778
8.37 GARAGE/STREETS - OIL FILTERAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505779

111.08 GARAGE/STREETS - COUPLER, SIDE WIND JACKAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505781
31.58 GARAGE/STREETS - TOP COAT, WIRE BRUSH SETAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505832
169.00 GARAGE/STREETS - VEHICLE BATTERYAUTO VALUE MARSHALL225-505950
262.71 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 4/1/23 - 6/30/23BRONSON HELPNET404-1522

5,100.00 2023.098FIBERNET SUPPORT CONTRACT - APRIL 2023CHR SOLUTIONS763832
2,000.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1/1/23 - 3/31/23COURTNEY & ASSOCIATES2023 - 80

178.97 CUST NO. 1650 - ELECTRIC (SAW BLADE, M18 HACKZALL, TORCH BLADE)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615392
4.59 CUST NO. 1650 - WATER (CLOTH PLUMBER)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615378

15.99 CUST NO. 1650 - AIRPORT (INSULATED DISCONNECT)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615496
46.53 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (KEYS, GLUE, PAINT BRUSH)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615488

1,762.27 CUST NO. 1650 - STREETS (CHAINSAW, CHAIN)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615734
8.99 CUST NO. 1650 - REC/PARKS (LEVER FLUSH)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615821

34.98 CUST NO. 1650 - WASTE WATER (FILTER CARTRIDGE, MAP PRO GAS)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615799
17.18 CUST NO. 1650 - PSB (BATTERIES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615912
10.27 CUST NO. 1650 - FIBERNET (WALL PLATES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615879
56.55 CUST NO. 1650 - MARSHALL HOUSE (MOP REFILLS, CLOROX WIPES)DARLING ACE HARDWARE615951
12.58 CUST NO. 1650 - WASTE WATER (WHEEL BRUSH)DARLING ACE HARDWARE616003

1,469.35 DPW - TRAFFIC SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN, INC.INV68602
57.80 DPW - PARKING SIGNSDORNBOS SIGN, INC.INV68604

10,086.78 2023.203CUST NO. C-001648 SANITARY SEWER ROOT CONTROL TREATMENTDUKE'S ROOT CONTROL, INC.10696
900.00 DEMOCRACY SUITE ICP, ICX CODING, TABULATOR AND ADA SECURE MEDIAELECTION SOURCE23-991
47.55 ACCT NO. 866466 CLINIC COLLECTIONFIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION2501092303

142,202.88 2023.029CUST ID: 2343 CONSTRUCTION OF THE BROOKS SUBSTATIONHYDAKER-WHEATLAKE151519
909.00 CUST: MUNMARS - INSPECTION & REPORTING MARCH 2023HYDROCORP0071583-IN
164.04 CLIENT NO. MARSH - FIBERNET NAME PLATESIMPACT SOLUTIONS175062

6,216.00 2023.212APPRENTICE LINEMAN SCHOOLING - HENRY JOINT APPRENTICESHIP & TRAININGII2300040
2,550.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES THROUGH 2/28/23KITCH DRUTCHAS WAGNER VALITUTTI574314
1,500.00 2023.092SERVICES FOR EATON PARK DESIGN 3/1/23 - 3/31/23MCSA GROUP, INC.6

465.50 CUST NO. 979 35 WATT BULBSMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5172534.004
87.42 CUST NO. 979 LIGHT BULBSMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5182737.001
76.00 CUST NO. 979 LIGHT BULBSMEDLER ELECTRIC COMPANYS5182737.002

1,546.86 CUST NO. C242607 FIRE GEARMUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES, INC.IN1854207
87.50 METER OFFICE - MAR & APR COOLER & WATERO'LEARY WATER CONDITIONING118225
48.00 ELECTRIC DEPT - BOTTLED WATERO'LEARY WATER CONDITIONING118226
90.53 ACCT NO. 26140 HAND SOAP, LYSOLOFFICE 3602552236
658.00 WELL #1 NEW VFD FAN & FILTERS - QUOTE ALG-01252023PEERLESS MIDWEST, INC.71833
297.07 CUST ID: 100402 ANCHOR RODPOWER LINE SUPPLY56732543
490.00 CUST ID: 100402 SLEEVES FOR CROWPOWER LINE SUPPLY56732605
252.00 CUST ID: 100402 TEST & CLEAN RUBBERGOODSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56732606
535.88 CUST ID: 100402 SMALL WEDGE DEADENDPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734124
902.20 CUST ID: 100402 100AMP METER SOCKETPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734126

1,843.38 CUST ID: 100402 FLOOD SEALPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734127
96.00 BOOT ALLOWANCE - JINKS, DANPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734159
192.00 CUST ID: 100402 FR HATSPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734160
800.00 CUST ID: 100402 CABLE REELERPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734209
590.00 CUST ID: 100402 CLIMBING BELT - PEHRSONPOWER LINE SUPPLY56734378

3,347.00 2023.221LEAD LINE REPLACEMENT AT 532 N. LINDEN STREETQUALITY EXCAVATORS, INC23-1116
28.27 CUST NO. 021063 OPERATING SUPPLIESSPARTAN STORES04012023

(559.08)CUST NO. 5154 CREDIT MEMO FOR GUIDE BAR & CHAINSTEENSMA997476
14,887.00 2023.170CUST NO. 5154 EXMARK ZERO TURN MOWERSTEENSMA1004770
3,236.14 2023.215CUST NO. 5154 MOWER REPAIR PARTSSTEENSMA1009822

15,712.47 2023.207UL94 UNLEADED AVGASSWIFT FUELS, LLC2295
351.23 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060412
173.66 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC & FIBER 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060411
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW & GARAGE 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060409
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060410
41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060407
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 3/29/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620060413

Page 12 of 215



APPROVAL LIST FOR CITY OF MARSHALL 2/2Page:04/14/2023 09:09 AM
User: KWAGNER
DB: Marshall

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 04/18/2023 - 04/18/2023
UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN

AMOUNT
PO
NUMBERDESCRIPTION

VENDOR
NAME

INVOICE
NUMBER

46.55 UNIFORM SERVICES - MARSHALL HOUSE 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061110
56.69 UNIFORM SERVICES - DPW & GARAGE 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061107
166.61 UNIFORM SERVICES - ELECTRIC & FIBER 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061109
70.63 UNIFORM SERVICES - POWER HOUSE 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061108
41.44 UNIFORM SERVICES - WASTE WATER 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061105
44.72 UNIFORM SERVICES - WATER 4/5/23UNIFIRST CORPORATION1620061111

227,525.75 GRAND TOTAL: 

Page 13 of 215



 

ITEM 10.A 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: PA 425 CONDITIONAL LAND TRANSFER REQUESTS (MARSHALL 

TOWNSHIP)  
  
 
The City of Marshall received a request from the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance 
(MAEDA) to enter into a Public Act 425 of 1984 Conditional Land Transfer for multiple 
properties that it owns within Marshall Township for economic development purposes. A Public 
Act 425 agreement brings an existing property into the City of Marshall to receive city services 
and provides for a portion of the collected taxes to be shared with the Township transferring the 
parcel. 
  
The following Marshall Township properties are requesting transfer into the City of Marshall: 
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA) 
13580 13 Mile Rd. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The South 1/2 of the South 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-021-01 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
13712 13 Mile Rd. 
  
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The North 1/2 of the South 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-021-02 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
13996 13 Mile Rd. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The West 2.0 acres of the North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 

Page 14 of 215



of Section 29, Town 2 South, Range 6 West. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-021-03 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
13820 W. Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
A Parcel of land in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 2 
South Range 6 West, described as follows: Beginning at a point distant South 89 degrees 00 
minutes East, 1331.6 feet, North 01 degree 06 minutes East. 18.29 and North 67 degrees 14 
minutes 40 seconds West. 17.23 feet from the South Quarter post of said Section 20, thence 
North 01 degree 06 minutes East 215.19 feet; thence North 67 degrees 14 minutes 40 seconds 
West, 150 feet parallel to and distant 60 feet from the centerline of the Battle Creek-Marshall 
Road; thence South 22 degrees 45 minutes 20 seconds West. 200 feet; thence South 67 
degrees 14 minutes 40 seconds East 229.41 to the place of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-201-018-00 
  
 
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
13996 W. Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
Beginning on the South line of Highway U.S. 12 (Michigan Avenue) at a point distant North 67 
degrees 06 minutes West, 234.82 feet from its intersection with the East line of Section 29, 
Township 2 South, Range 6 West, and running thence North 67 degrees 06 minutes West along 
said South line of Highway U.S. 12, 371.08 feet; thence South 10 degrees 04 minutes West 
264.6 feet; thence South 67 degrees 06 minutes East, parallel with said U.S. 12, 354.1 feet; 
thence North 13 degrees 42 minutes East 261.3 feet to the place of beginning; EXCEPTING 
therefrom the Easterly 202 feet of the above described parcel. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-012-00 
  
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
14012 W. Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The Easterly 202 feet of the following described parcel: Beginning on the South line of Highway 
U.S. 12 (Michigan Avenue) at a point distant North 67 degrees 06 minutes West 234.82 feet 
from its intersection with the East line of Section 29, Town 2 South, Range 6 West and running 
thence North 67 degrees 06 minutes West along said South line of Highway U.S. 12, 371.08 
feet; thence South 10 degrees 04 minutes West 264.6 feet; thence South 67 degrees 06 
minutes East parallel with said U.S. 12, 354.1 feet; thence North 13 degrees 42 minutes East 
261.3 feet to the place of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-015-00 

Page 15 of 215



  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The West 470 feet of that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West  Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, which lies South of 
Michigan Avenue extended (formally known as U.S. 12 and M-17) the Southerly line of said 
road being the South line of premises conveyed by deed recorded in Liber 177, page 432 
(recorded as Liber 1777 of Deeds at Page 432 in the most recent deed). 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-00 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
Parcel 1: 
The East 355 feet of the West 685 feet of that part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, lying South of Michigan 
Avenue. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-03 
  
Parcel 2: 
That part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan, lying South of Michigan Avenue extended (formerly known as US 12 
and M-17), West of a line running North and South 1018.09 feet West of the East Section line 
and East of a line running North and South 685 feet East and of the North-South 1/4 line of said 
Section 28. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-04 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
Bentley Boulevard 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, EXCEPT the West 2.0 acres thereof. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-021-05 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
13844 13 Mile Rd. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
The South 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 

Page 16 of 215



South, Range 6 West. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-290-021-04 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
Parcel 1: 
The North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, lying 
Southerly of Michigan Avenue; EXCEPT the West 470 feet; ALSO EXCEPT commencing at the 
Southwest Corner of the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 28; thence East 
470 feet; thence North 363 feet to the point of beginning; thence East 600 feet; thence North 
275 feet more or less; thence Northwesterly along the Southerly line of Michigan Avenue 638 
feet more or less to a point lying North of the point of beginning; thence South 485 feet more or 
less to the point of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-01 
  
Parcel 2: 
The West 330 feet of the part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, Town 2 South, Range 6 
West, lying South of Michigan Avenue extended (formerly known as U.S. 12 and M-17), the 
South line of said Michigan Avenue being the South line of premises first conveyed by Deed 
recorded in Liber 177 of Deeds, page 315, Calhoun County, Michigan. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-02 
  
Parcel 3: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 28, 
Township 2 South, Range 6 West; thence East 470 feet; thence North 363 feet to the point of 
beginning; thence East 600 feet; thence North 275 feet more or less; thence Northwesterly 
along the Southerly line of Michigan Avenue 638 feet more or less to a point lying North of the 
point of beginning; thence South 485 feet more or less to the point of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-281-015-05 
  
Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA)  
E. Michigan Ave. 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
  
PARCEL 1: 
A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun 
County, Michigan, described as follows:   That part of the following described premises lying in 
Section 19:  Commencing where Ceresco Road intersects Section line between Sections 29 
and 30, running thence North on Section line to the Territorial Road (so called), Northwest in 
middle of said road about 60 rods, South to Ceresco Road, East to beginning, in Sections 19 
and 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, to be taken off the East part of said description excepting 
therefrom, all that part of the above lying North of a line described as:  Beginning at a point on 
the East line of said Section 19, distant 1099.09 feet South of the East 1/4 post of said Section, 

Page 17 of 215



thence bearing North 77 degrees 50 minutes West in a straight line to the West line of the 
above described parcel and the end of said line. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-190-006-01 
  
PARCEL 2: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall 
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan; thence East 80 rods; thence North 39-1/2 rods; thence 
West 80 rods; thence South to the place of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-193-003-00 
  
PARCEL 3: 
A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as follows: Start on the 
North bank of the Kalamazoo River at a point 10 rods East from the North and South 1/4 line of 
Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West; go North on West line of land of D.H. Godfrey, 
(formerly) to the East and West 1/4 line of Section 19; go West to a point 80 rods East from the 
West line of said Section 19; go South to the North bank of the Kalamazoo River, go Easterly 
along North bank of Kalamazoo River to start. EXCEPTING the North 20 acres thereof. Also, 
EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-193-006-00 
  
PARCEL 4: 
Part of the East 1/2 of Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, lying Southerly of Old US-12 
Highway, described as beginning on the East & West 1/4 line at a point distant 165 feet East of 
the North & South 1/4 line, thence South to South Section line, thence East 1742.4 feet, thence 
North to old US-12 Highway right of way, thence Northwesterly along right of way to a point 165 
feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence South 184.33 feet to beginning; EXCEPT 
beginning in the Northeast corner of said parcel, thence Northwesterly along the Southerly 
highway right of way line 1233.8 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet, 
thence South 67 degrees 29 minutes East 189.99 feet, thence South 12 degrees 35 minutes 
West 474.63 feet, thence South 87 degrees 01 minute East 655 feet, thence South 84 degrees 
51 minutes East 534 feet, thence North 402.7 feet to beginning; ALSO EXCEPT Beginning in 
the center of old US-12 Highway 165 feet Southeasterly of the North & South 1/4 line, thence 
Southeasterly in highway 250.12 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet, 
thence North 67 degrees 29 minutes West 105.66 feet, thence North to beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-193-009-00 
  
PARCEL 5: 
A parcel of land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as: Beginning at a point 
10 rods East of the center of Section 19, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan, running thence South 69.57 chains more or less to the center of 
Ceresco Road, thence East along the center of said road 26.40 chains, more or less, thence 
North 61.20 chains, more or less, to the Southerly line of the right of way formerly occupied by 
Michigan Traction Company, thence Northwesterly along said Southerly line of the right of way 
to the intersection thereof with the East and West 1/4 line of aforesaid Section 19, thence West 
to the place of beginning. EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 19, Town 2 South, 
Range 6 West. 
  

Page 18 of 215



Parcel ID Number: 16-300-006-00 
  
PARCEL 6: 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Town 
2 South, Range 6 West, thence South to the Kalamazoo River, thence Southeasterly along said 
river to a point 165 feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence North to Section line, thence 
West to place of beginning.  EXCEPT Beginning in the centerline of C Drive North 1893.5 feet 
East of the West Section line, thence North 501 feet, thence East 336.14 feet, thence South 501 
feet, thence West 336.14 feet. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-300-018-00 
  
PARCEL 7: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall 
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, thence East 80 rods, thence South to the line of the 
Michigan Central Railroad, thence along the line of said Michigan Central Railroad to the town 
line between Marshall Township and Emmett Township, thence North to the place of beginning. 
  
Parcel ID Number: 16-300-021-00 
  
In 2006, the City and Marshall Township entered into a Master Public Act 425 Conditional Land 
Transfer Agreement. In 2015, the Master Agreement was extended to 2026 and in 2019, it was 
revised and extended to 2029. 
  
Public Act 425 requires the adoption of a resolution and a public hearing by both governmental 
bodies. The proposed resolution, contracts and public hearing notice are attached. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
These parcels will be held by MAEDA for economic development purposes and no property 
taxes are anticipated to be collected or distributed until sold or transferred. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #2023-15 and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sign and submit 
the necessary documents.  
 

Page 19 of 215



CITY OF MARSHALL, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15

 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE MULTIPLE P.A. 425 of 1984 

CONDITIONAL LAND TRANSFER REQUESTS 
BETWEEN MARSHALL TOWNSHIP AND THE CITY OF MARSHALL

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Marshall, held on April 17, 
2023 at 7:00 PM.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by ___________________, and 
supported by _____________________.

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall received a request from the Marshall Area Economic 
Development Alliance (MAEDA) to enter into a Public Act 425 of 1984 Conditional Land 
Transfer for multiple properties that it owns within Marshall Township for economic 
development purposes; and

WHEREAS, in 2006, the City and Marshall Township entered into a Master Public Act 
425 Conditional Land Transfer Agreement. In 2015, the Master Agreement was extended 
to 2026 and in 2019, it was revised and extended to 2029; and

WHEREAS, the Master 425 Agreement facilitates the provision of City services, including 
municipal sewer, water, police, and fire protection to properties currently within Marshall 
Township according to terms acceptable to both Marshall Township and the City of 
Marshall; and

WHEREAS, on April 3, 2023, the City of Marshall set a Public Hearing for April 17, 2023, 
as required by P. A. 267 and published said notice; and

WHEREAS, the following parcels have been requested by the property owner to be 
transferred from Marshall Township into the City of Marshall: 16-290-021-01, 16-290-
021-02, 16-290-021-03, 16-201-018-00, 16-290-012-00, 16-290-015-00, 16-281-015-
00, 16-281-015-03, 16-281-015-04, 16-290-021-05, 16-290-021-04, 16-281-015-01, 
16-281-015-02, 16-281-015-05, 16-190-006-01, 16-193-003-00, 16-193-006-00, 16-
193-009-00, 16-300-006-00, 16-300-018-00, 16-300-021-00; and

WHEREAS, on April 17, 2023, the Marshall City Council held a Public Hearing as required 
by P.A. 425 of 1984; and

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MARSHALL approve the Master 425 Development Agreement contracts in substantial 
form for the Conditional Land Transfer of Property between Marshall Township and the 
City of Marshall for the following parcels: 16-290-021-01, 16-290-021-02, 16-290-021-
03, 16-201-018-00, 16-290-012-00, 16-290-015-00, 16-281-015-00, 16-281-015-03, 

Page 20 of 215



16-281-015-04, 16-290-021-05, 16-290-021-04, 16-281-015-01, 16-281-015-02, 16-
281-015-05, 16-190-006-01, 16-193-003-00, 16-193-006-00, 16-193-009-00, 16-300-
006-00, 16-300-018-00, 16-300-021-00 and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk 
to sign. 

Resolution declared adopted this 17th day or April 2023.

__________________________
Michell Eubank, City Clerk

I, Michelle Eubank, being duly sworn as the City Clerk for the City of Marshall, hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the 
City Council, City of Marshall, County of Calhoun, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting 
held on April 3, 2023 and that the said meeting was conducted and that the minutes of 
the meeting were kept and will be or have been made available.

__________________________
Michell Eubank, City Clerk

Page 21 of 215



Page 22 of 215



Acres Parcel Number
9.7 16-290-021-01
9.7 16-290-021-02
1.6 16-290-021-03
9.7 16-290-021-04
8.1 16-290-021-05

0.86 16-201-018-00
0.89 16-290-012-00
1.05 16-290-015-00

10.32 16-281-015-00
5.21 16-281-015-05

18.78 16-281-015-01
10.18 16-281-015-02

9.95 16-281-015-03
21.2 16-281-015-04

40 16-300-021-00
19.8 16-193-003-00

70 16-193-006-00
76.1 16-300-018-00
70.8 16-300-006-00

78 16-193-009-00
27.5 16-190-006-01

April 425 Tranfers
Parcel Worksheet

Page 23 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 24 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 25 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 27 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The South 1/2 of the South 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West. 
 
16-290-021-01 
 

Page 28 of 215



CATV

CATV CATV

75' WD. CONSUMERS
ENERGY EASEMENT
L. 1839, PG. 442
L. 1839, PG. 443

MATTHEW &
 JE

NNIFE
R W

OODS

13580 13 M
ILE

 ROAD

CERESC
O, M

I 4
9033

PARCEL I
.D

. 1
3-16-290-021-01

PARCEL A
CREAGE 10.15 ACRES

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXX

T

O
H

S89°56'13"E  1328.25' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29

13
 M

IL
E 

R
O

AD
(6

6'
 W

ID
E 

R
.O

.W
.)

10

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

9
33

2.
68

' (
M

)

99
.1

'

189.2'

75.0'

62
.6

'

11

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

S89°57'11"E  1328.25' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

  3
32

.3
1'

 (M
) E

A
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

 1
/2

 O
F

TH
E 

SO
U

TH
 1

/2
 O

F 
TH

E 
N

O
R

TH
W

ES
T 

1/
4 

O
F 

TH
E

N
O

R
TH

W
ES

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 2
9

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

(M
)

5.
8'

4.
0'

2.
3'

24
.3

'

33
.5

'

99
7.

51
' (

M
)

13
30

.2
0'

 (M
)

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY

SITE
13580 13 MILE RD
CERESCO, MI 49033

EXISTING LEGEND                            

WATER MAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER

FIBER OPTIC
GAS
ELECTRICAL
FENCE
HYDRANT
GATE VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)
WATER MAIN MANHOLE
SQUARE CATCH BASIN
ROUND CATCH BASIN
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

END SECTION
CULVERT
STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT
SIGN
UTILITY POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT
LIGHT POLE

RISER
ELECTRICAL BOX

TREE

GUY WIRE

FLAG POLE
MAILBOX

WTR WTR

STM STM

SAN SAN

FO FO

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

E E

W

S

D

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE E
T

CABLETV CATV CATV

OVERHEAD UTILITY OH OH

X X X X X X X X X X X

CONCRETE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

GRAVEL

RIP-RAP

0'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 60'

120'60'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION PER TITLE POLICY:
LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29,
TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST.

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:
TO: (I) MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORTAION; (II)
THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND; (III) MICHIGAN LAND BANK
AUTHORITY; (IV) MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ALLIANCE; (V) CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY):

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021
MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND
TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND
NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18, AND 19 OF
TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON
02/14/2023.

__________ ________________ Dated: _________________
JEFFREY EVANS, PS
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 47637
JEFF.EVANS@SME-USA.COM

SURVEYORS NOTES:
1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THE SITE IS NAD83 MICHIGAN STATE

PLANE, SOUTH ZONE, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

2. DATE OF SURVEY: FEBRUARY 14, 2023.

3. SOME FEATURES SHOWN ON SURVEY MAY BE OUT OF SCALE
FOR CLARITY.

4. DIMENSIONS ON THIS SURVEY ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND
DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ACTUAL PROPERTY ACREAGE EQUALS 10.15 ACRES.

6. SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE A PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 26025C0220C, WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF 04/04/2011.

7. EVIDENCE OF EARTH MOVING WORK WAS NOT OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

8. NO EVIDENCE OF CHANGES IN RIGHT OF WAY OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO. 131198350CML,
WITH AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY 7, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

1

2

3

ANY DEFECT, LIEN, ENCUMBRANCE, ADVERSE CLAIM, OR OTHER MATTER THAT
APPEARS FOR THE FIRST TIME IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OR IS CREATED, ATTACHES, OR
IS DISCLOSED BETWEEN THE COMMITMENT DATE AND THE DATE ON WHICH ALL OF
THE SCHEDULE B, PART I—REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

a.   RIGHTS OR CLAIMS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

b. ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION OR ADVERSE
CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE DISCLOSED BY AN
ACCURATE AND COMPLETE SURVEY OF THE LAND. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

c. EASEMENTS OR CLAIMS OF EASEMENTS NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS
AND EXISTING WATER, MINERAL, OIL AND EXPLORATION RIGHTS. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

d. ANY LIEN, OR RIGHT TO A LIEN, FOR SERVICES, LABOR, OR MATERIAL, HERETOFORE
OR HEREAFTER FURNISHED, IMPOSED BY LAW AND NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

e. ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS, MINERAL, MINING RIGHTS AND/OR RESERVATIONS
THEREOF. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

f. TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN AS EXISTING LIENS BY
THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

NO LIABILITY IS ASSUMED BY THE COMPANY FOR TAX INCREASE OCCASIONED BY
RETROACTIVE REVALUATION OR CHANGE IN LAND USAGE OR LOSS OF ANY PRINCIPAL
RESIDENCE EXEMPTION STATUS FOR THE LAND. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

THE POLICY DOES NOT INSURE AGAINST UNPAID WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC OR GAS
CHARGES, IF ANY, THAT HAVE NOT BEEN LEVIED AS TAXES AGAINST THE LAND. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

TAXES AND/OR ASSESSMENTS WHICH BECOME A LIEN OR BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE
SUBSEQUENT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREIN. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF TENANTS UNDER UNRECORDED LEASES AND ANY AND ALL PARTIES
CLAIMING BY, THROUGH AND THEREUNDER. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

EASEMENT RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF ANY AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, PUBLIC OR
OTHERWISE, OVER AND ACROSS THE LAND FOR THE LOCATION, SERVICING AND
MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES LOCATED ON, OVER OR UNDER SAID LAND, IF ANY. (AS
SHOWN HEREIN)

AN OIL AND GAS LEASE FOR THE TERM THEREIN PROVIDED WITH CERTAIN
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS, TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AS
SET FORTH THEREIN, DATED JULY 27, 1966, THOMAS B. MASK, LESSEE, RECORDED ON
NOVEMBER 28, 1966, AS LIBER 877 PAGE 83. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

AN OIL AND GAS LEASE FOR THE TERM THEREIN PROVIDED WITH CERTAIN
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS, TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AS
SET FORTH THEREIN, DATED JANUARY 25, 1983, THEO M. CORLIS, A SINGLE WOMAN,
LESSOR, RUSS VAN BELOIS, LESSEE, RECORDED ON FEBRUARY 1, 1983, AS LIBER 1266
PAGE 623. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 1839 PAGE 442. (AS SHOWN HEREIN)

RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 1839 PAGE 443. (AS SHOWN HEREIN)

TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH AS
LIBER 4652 PAGE 404. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS
OF 13 MILE ROAD. (13 MILE ROAD (66' R.O.W.) EAST R.O.W. LINE AS DEPICTED)

GRANT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND (THE
"MSF"), WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 N WASHINGTON SQUARE, LANSING, MI 48933, AND
MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, A
MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, DATED _____________ RECORDED ON __________
IN LIBER _____, PAGE _____________. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

4

5

6

COMBINED SEWER COMB

N

S

W E

N

S

W E

FIRE LINE FL FL FL FL FL

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE.  LOCATIONS OBTAINED BY FRANCHISE UTILITY
AGENCIES, MUNICIPAL AGENCIES AND/OR OWNER PROVIDED RECORD DRAWINGS. NO
GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR
ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY WARNING!!

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. NEITHER
THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, OF NEARBY STRUCTURES,
NOR OF OTHER PERSONS.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

7

8

9

13

10

11

12

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

FI
LE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
\\s

m
e-

in
c\

pz
\W

IP
\0

91
43

4.
03

\C
AD

\D
es

ig
n 

Fi
le

s\
SU

R\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\T
op

o-
Al

ta
-B

nd
ry

\R
ev

1\
AL

TA
\0

91
43

4.
03

-1
6-

29
0-

02
1-

01
-A

LT
A.

dw
g

M
ar

 0
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

2:
08

pm
 - 

ty
lo

r.m
ah

an
y

Project

NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE PRIOR
CONSENT OF SME

c

REV BYDATEISSUED FOR

Revisions

Orientation

Project Location

Sheet Name

Scale

Surveyor's Seal

SME Project No.

Project Manager:

CADD:

Checked By:

Sheet No.

www.sme-usa.com

DRAWING NOTE: SCALE DEPICTED IS MEANT FOR 24" X 36" AND
WILL SCALE INCORRECTLY IF PRINTED ON ANY OTHER SIZE

MEDIA

Date

Field Chief:

Reviewed By:

2023

MARSHALL MEGASITE

13844 13 MILE ROAD,
CERESCO, MI 49033

02/22/2023

091434.03

J. EVANS

B. JACKSON & J. GLEN

J. RUNYON & T. MAHANY

S. WILSON

J. EVANS

01

ATTORNEY COMMENTS 03-01-2023 TPM01

14

Page 29 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 30 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 31 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 33 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The North 1/2 of the South 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan. 
 
16-290-021-02 
 

Page 34 of 215



CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV CATV

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV CATV

X

X X X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X X X X X X X X

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXXXXX

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

AC

T

OHOH

13
 M

IL
E

 R
O

A
D

(6
6'

 W
ID

E
 R

.O
.W

.)
W

E
S

T 
LI

N
E

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 2
9

E
A

S
T 

LI
N

E
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 3

0
S

00
°2

1'
39

"W
  3

32
.7

4'

SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29 E
A

S
T 

LI
N

E
 O

F 
TH

E
 W

E
S

T 
1/

2 
O

F 
TH

E
 N

O
R

TH
W

E
S

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
S

E
C

TI
O

N
 2

9NORTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29

A
P

P
R

O
X

. R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

A
P

P
R

O
X

. R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

THOMAS &
 BECKI W

ILL
ARD

13712 13 M
ILE

 ROAD

CERESC
O, M

I 4
9033

PARCEL I
.D

. 1
6-290-021-02

10.15 ACRES

66
4.

81
'

16
62

.8
8'

62
.7

'

0.2'

0.3'

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY

SITE

EXISTING LEGEND                            

WATER MAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER

FIBER OPTIC
GAS
ELECTRICAL
FENCE
HYDRANT
GATE VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)
WATER MAIN MANHOLE
SQUARE CATCH BASIN
ROUND CATCH BASIN
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

END SECTION
CULVERT
STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT
SIGN
UTILITY POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT
LIGHT POLE

RISER
ELECTRICAL BOX

TREE

GUY WIRE

FLAG POLE
MAILBOX

WTR WTR

STM STM

SAN SAN

FO FO

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

E E

W

S

D

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE E
T

CABLETV CATV CATV

OVERHEAD UTILITY OH OH

X X X X X X X X X X X

CONCRETE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

GRAVEL

RIP-RAP

0'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 60'

120'60'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR PARCEL ID 13-16-290-021-002:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO. 131198352CML, WITH AND
EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY 7, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE NORTH 1/2  OF THE SOUTH 1/2  OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4  OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4  OF SECTION 29,
TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST, MARSHALL TOWNSHIP CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN.

SURVEYORS NOTES:
1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THE SITE IS NAD83 MICHIGAN STATE

PLANE, SOUTH ZONE, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

2. DATE OF SURVEY: JANUARY 20, 2023.

3. SOME FEATURES SHOWN ON SURVEY MAY BE OUT OF SCALE
FOR CLARITY.

4. DIMENSIONS ON THIS SURVEY ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND
DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE A PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 26025C0220C, WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF 04/04/2011

6. NO EVIDENCE OF RECENT EARTH WORK WAS OBSERVED AT THE
TIME OF SURVEY.

7. ACTUAL PROPERTY ACREAGE EQUALS 66.50 ACRES.

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO. 131198352CML,
WITH AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY 7, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

1

2

3

ANY DEFECT, LIEN, ENCUMBRANCE, ADVERSE
CLAIM, OR OTHER MATTER THAT APPEARS FOR
THE FIRST TIME IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OR IS
CREATED, ATTACHES, OR IS DISCLOSED
BETWEEN THE COMMITMENT DATE AND THE
DATE ON WHICH ALL OF THE SCHEDULE B, PART
I—REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

a. RIGHTS OR CLAIMS OF PARTIES IN
POSSESSION NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

b. ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE,
VIOLATION, VARIATION OR ADVERSE
CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT
WOULD BE DISCLOSED BY AN ACCURATE AND
COMPLETE SURVEY OF THE LAND. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

c. EASEMENTS OR CLAIMS OF EASEMENTS NOT
SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS AND EXISTING
WATER, MINERAL, OIL AND EXPLORATION
RIGHTS. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

d. ANY LIEN, OR RIGHT TO A LIEN, FOR SERVICES,
LABOR, OR MATERIAL, HERETOFORE OR
HEREAFTER FURNISHED, IMPOSED BY LAW AND
NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

e. ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS, MINERAL, MINING
RIGHTS AND/OR RESERVATIONS THEREOF. (NOT
A SURVEY MATTER)

f. TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WHICH ARE
NOT SHOWN AS EXISTING LIENS BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

NO LIABILITY IS ASSUMED BY THE COMPANY
FOR TAX INCREASE OCCASIONED BY
RETROACTIVE REVALUATION OR CHANGE IN
LAND USAGE OR LOSS OF ANY PRINCIPAL
RESIDENCE EXEMPTION STATUS FOR THE LAND.
(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

THE POLICY DOES NOT INSURE AGAINST UNPAID
WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC OR GAS CHARGES, IF
ANY, THAT HAVE NOT BEEN LEVIED AS TAXES
AGAINST THE LAND. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

TAXES AND/OR ASSESSMENTS WHICH BECOME
A LIEN OR BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE
SUBSEQUENT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREIN.
(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF TENANTS UNDER UNRECORDED
LEASES AND ANY AND ALL PARTIES CLAIMING
BY, THROUGH AND THEREUNDER. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

EASEMENT RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF ANY AND ALL
UTILITY COMPANIES, PUBLIC OR OTHERWISE,
OVER AND ACROSS THE LAND FOR THE
LOCATION, SERVICING AND MAINTENANCE OF
FACILITIES LOCATED ON, OVER OR UNDER SAID
LAND, IF ANY. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

THE FUTURE ADVANCE MORTGAGE IN THE
AMOUNT OF $50,000.00, PLUS ANY OTHER
AMOUNTS PAYABLE UNDER THE TERMS
THEREOF, FROM THOMAS E. WILLARD AND
BECKI L. WILLARD, HUSBAND AND WIFE,
MORTGAGOR, TO PNC BANK, NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION, MORTGAGEE, DATED MARCH 14,
2017, RECORDED ON APRIL 4, 2017, IN LIBER
4129, PAGE 405.  THIS MORTGAGE CONTAINS A
REVOLVING CREDIT FEATURE.

NOTE: BORROWER MUST SUBMIT TO THE
ABOVE LENDER, A LETTER AUTHORIZING THE
CLOSING OF THE LINE OF CREDIT.  SAID
AUTHORIZATION WILL BE SUBMITTED ALONG
WITH THE PAYOFF OF THE MORTGAGE. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

OIL AND GAS LEASE TO THOMAS B. MASK,
DATED JULY 27, 1966, RECORDED NOVEMBER 28,
1966 IN LIBER 877 ON PAGE 83. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

OIL AND GAS LEASE TO RUSS VAN BELOIS,
DATED JANUARY 25, 1983, RECORDED FEBRUARY
1, 1983 IN LIBER 1266 ON PAGE 623. (BLANKET
IN NATURE)

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF
THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS OF 13
MILE ROAD. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF
MEMORANDUM OF OPTION TO PURCHASE
PROPERTY SET FORTH IN LIBER 4652 PAGE 408,
BETWEEN THOMAS WILLARD AND BECKI
WILLARD AND MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

GRANT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND (THE "MSF"),
WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 N WASHINGTON
SQUARE, LANSING, MI 48933, AND MARSHALL
AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, A
MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, DATED
_____________ RECORDED ON __________ IN LIBER
_____, PAGE _____________. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

5

6

7

COMBINED SEWER COMB

N

S

W E

N

S

W E

FIRE LINE FL FL FL FL FL

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE.  LOCATIONS OBTAINED BY FRANCHISE UTILITY
AGENCIES, MUNICIPAL AGENCIES AND/OR OWNER PROVIDED RECORD DRAWINGS. NO
GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR
ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY WARNING!!

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. NEITHER
THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, OF NEARBY STRUCTURES,
NOR OF OTHER PERSONS.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

FI
LE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
\\s

m
e-

in
c\

pz
\W

IP
\0

91
43

4.
03

\C
AD

\D
es

ig
n 

Fi
le

s\
SU

R\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\T
op

o-
Al

ta
-B

nd
ry

\R
ev

1\
AL

TA
\0

91
43

4.
03

-1
6-

29
0-

02
1-

02
-A

LT
A.

dw
g

M
ar

 0
1,

  2
02

3 
- 3

:1
0p

m
 - 

sa
m

an
th

a.
pa

ra
di

se

Project

NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE PRIOR
CONSENT OF SME

c

REV BYDATEISSUED FOR

Revisions

Orientation

Project Location

Sheet Name

Scale

Surveyor's Seal

SME Project No.

Project Manager:

CADD:

Checked By:

Sheet No.

www.sme-usa.com

DRAWING NOTE: SCALE DEPICTED IS MEANT FOR 24" X 36" AND
WILL SCALE INCORRECTLY IF PRINTED ON ANY OTHER SIZE

MEDIA

Date

Field Chief:

Reviewed By:

2023

MARSHALL MEGASITE

13712 13 MILE ROAD
CERESCO, MI 49033
CALHOUN COUNTY

02/28/2023

091434.03

J. EVANS

B. JACKSON

J. RUNYON

S. WILSON

J. EVANS

01

ATTORNEY COMMENTS 03-01-2023 TPM01

8

9

10

11

12

4
SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:
TO: MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, THE
MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND, MICHIGAN LAND BANK AUTHORITY,
MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE AND
CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021
MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND
TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND
NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 16, 17, 18, AND 19 OF
TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON
01/27/2023.

__________ _____ Dated: _________________
JEFFREY EVANS, PS
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 47637
JEFF.EVANS@SME-USA.COM

13

70
.8

'

97
.0

'

Page 35 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 36 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 37 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 39 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The West 2.0 acres of the North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of 
Section 29, Town 2 South, Range 6 West. 
 
16-290-021-03 
 

Page 40 of 215



CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

G
AS

G
AS

GAS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

G
AS

OH

OH

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH

OH

OH

T

 JE
REMY &

 LA
URA TURPIN

13996 13 M
ILE

 ROAD

CERESC
O, M

I 4
9033

PARCEL I
.D

. 1
3-16-290-021-03

2.00 ACRES

75' WD. CONSUMERS
ENERGY EASEMENT
L. 1839, PG. 440

13
 M

IL
E 

R
O

AD
(6

6'
 W

ID
E 

R
.O

.W
.)

BENTLEY BOULEVARD
(49.5' WIDE R.O.W.)

NORTH LINE SECTION 29
SOUTH LINE SECTION 20

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

W
ES

T 
LI

N
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

9
EA

ST
 L

IN
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 3

0

S89°56'21"E  261.79' (M) NORTH LINE OF THE WEST 2 ACRES

S89°56'19"E  261.78' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE WEST 2 ACRES

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

  3
32

.3
7'

 (M
)

N
00

°2
1'

39
"E

  3
32

.3
4'

 (M
) E

A
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

ES
T 

2 
A

C
R

ES

75.0'

T

55.5'

10
2.

7'

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

  2
66

0.
40

' (
M

)

S89°56'21"E  2656.68' (M)

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY

EXISTING LEGEND                            

WATER MAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER

FIBER OPTIC
GAS
ELECTRICAL
FENCE
HYDRANT
GATE VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)
WATER MAIN MANHOLE
SQUARE CATCH BASIN
ROUND CATCH BASIN
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

END SECTION
CULVERT
STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT
SIGN
UTILITY POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT
LIGHT POLE

RISER
ELECTRICAL BOX

TREE

GUY WIRE

FLAG POLE
MAILBOX

WTR WTR

STM STM

SAN SAN

FO FO

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

E E

W

S

D

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE E
T

CABLETV CATV CATV

OVERHEAD UTILITY OH OH

X X X X X X X X X X X

CONCRETE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

GRAVEL

RIP-RAP

0'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 20'

40'20'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE WEST 2.0 ACRES OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST.

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:
TO: (I) MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORTAION; (II)
THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND; (III) MICHIGAN LAND BANK
AUTHORITY; (IV) MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ALLIANCE; (V) CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY):

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021
MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY
ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18,
AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED
ON 02/14/2023.

__________ ________________ Dated: _________________
JEFFREY EVANS, PS
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 47637
JEFF.EVANS@SME-USA.COM

SURVEYORS NOTES:
1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THE SITE IS NAD83 MICHIGAN STATE

PLANE, SOUTH ZONE, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

2. DATE OF SURVEY: FEBRUARY 14, 2023.

3. SOME FEATURES SHOWN ON SURVEY MAY BE OUT OF SCALE
FOR CLARITY.

4. DIMENSIONS ON THIS SURVEY ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND
DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ACTUAL PROPERTY ACREAGE EQUALS 2.00 ACRES.

6. SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE A PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 26025C0220C, WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF 04/04/2011.

7. EVIDENCE OF EARTH MOVING WORK WAS NOT OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

8. NO EVIDENCE OF CHANGES IN RIGHT OF WAY OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO.
131198495CML, WITH AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF  FEBRUARY 7, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

1

2

3

ANY DEFECT, LIEN, ENCUMBRANCE, ADVERSE CLAIM, OR OTHER MATTER THAT
APPEARS FOR THE FIRST TIME IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OR IS CREATED,
ATTACHES, OR IS DISCLOSED BETWEEN THE COMMITMENT DATE AND THE DATE
ON WHICH ALL OF THE SCHEDULE B, PART I—REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

a. RIGHTS OR CLAIMS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION NOT SHOWN BY THE
PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

b. ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION OR
ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE DISCLOSED BY
AN ACCURATE AND COMPLETE SURVEY OF THE LAND. (AS SHOWN HEREIN)

c. EASEMENTS OR CLAIMS OF EASEMENTS NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS AND EXISTING WATER, MINERAL, OIL AND EXPLORATION RIGHTS. (AS
SHOWN HEREIN)

d. ANY LIEN, OR RIGHT TO A LIEN, FOR SERVICES, LABOR, OR MATERIAL,
HERETOFORE OR HEREAFTER FURNISHED, IMPOSED BY LAW
AND NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

e. ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS, MINERAL, MINING RIGHTS AND/OR RESERVATIONS
THEREOF. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

f. TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN AS EXISTING
LIENS BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

NO LIABILITY IS ASSUMED BY THE COMPANY FOR TAX INCREASE OCCASIONED BY
RETROACTIVE REVALUATION OR CHANGE IN LAND USAGE OR LOSS OF ANY
PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE EXEMPTION STATUS FOR THE LAND. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

THE POLICY DOES NOT INSURE AGAINST UNPAID WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC OR
GAS CHARGES, IF ANY, THAT HAVE NOT BEEN LEVIED AS TAXES AGAINST THE
LAND. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

TAXES AND/OR ASSESSMENTS WHICH BECOME A LIEN OR BECOME DUE AND
PAYABLE SUBSEQUENT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREIN. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

RIGHTS OF TENANTS UNDER UNRECORDED LEASES AND ANY AND ALL PARTIES
CLAIMING BY, THROUGH AND THEREUNDER. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

EASEMENT RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF ANY AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, PUBLIC OR
OTHERWISE, OVER AND ACROSS THE LAND FOR THE LOCATION, SERVICING AND
MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES LOCATED ON, OVER OR UNDER SAID LAND, IF ANY.
(AS SHOWN HEREIN)

A MORTGAGE TO SECURE AN INDEBTEDNESS IN THE AMOUNT OF $110,000.00,
DATED JUNE 29, 2020, JEREMY TURPIN AND LAURA BAGNALL-TURPIN AKA LAURA
ANNA TURPIN, HUSBAND AND WIFE, MORTGAGOR, HONOR CREDIT UNION,
MORTGAGEE, RECORDED ON JULY 28, 2020, IN LIBER 4439, PAGE 0596. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 1839, PAGE 440. (AS SHOWN
HEREIN)

NOTE FOR INFORMATION: AN AFFIDAVIT OF AFFIXTURE AFFECTING THE LAND IS
RECORDED AT LIBER 3216, PAGE 696. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET
FORTH AS LIBER 4642, PAGE 0631. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS AND MINERAL RIGHTS AND RESERVATIONS OF EVERY KIND
AND NATURE WHETHER RECORDED OR UNRECORDED AND ALL RIGHTS
PERTINENT THERETO. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE
BOUNDS OF 13 MILE ROAD AND BENTLEY BOULEVARD. (AS SHOWN HEREIN)

GRANT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (THE "MEDC"), WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 N WASHINGTON SQUARE,
LANSING, MI 48933, AND MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE,
A MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, DATED _____________ RECORDED ON
__________ IN LIBER _____, PAGE_________. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

4

5

6

COMBINED SEWER COMB

N

S

W E

FIRE LINE FL FL FL FL FL

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE.  LOCATIONS OBTAINED BY FRANCHISE UTILITY
AGENCIES, MUNICIPAL AGENCIES AND/OR OWNER PROVIDED RECORD DRAWINGS. NO
GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR
ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY WARNING!!

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. NEITHER
THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, OF NEARBY STRUCTURES,
NOR OF OTHER PERSONS.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

FI
LE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
\\s

m
e-

in
c\

pz
\W

IP
\0

91
43

4.
03

\C
AD

\D
es

ig
n 

Fi
le

s\
SU

R\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\T
op

o-
Al

ta
-B

nd
ry

\R
ev

1\
AL

TA
\0

91
43

4.
03

-1
6-

29
0-

02
1-

03
-A

LT
A.

dw
g

Fe
b 

21
,  

20
23

 - 
10

:2
8a

m
 - 

sa
ra

h.
w

ils
on

Project

NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE PRIOR
CONSENT OF SME

c

REV BYDATEISSUED FOR

Revisions

Orientation

Project Location

Sheet Name

Scale

Surveyor's Seal

SME Project No.

Project Manager:

CADD:

Checked By:

Sheet No.

www.sme-usa.com

DRAWING NOTE: SCALE DEPICTED IS MEANT FOR 24" X 36" AND
WILL SCALE INCORRECTLY IF PRINTED ON ANY OTHER SIZE

MEDIA

Date

Field Chief:

Reviewed By:

2023

MARSHALL MICHIGAN
MEGASITE

13996 13 MILE ROAD,
MARSHALL, MI 49033

02/20/2023

091434.03

J. EVANS

B. JACKSON & J. GLEN

J. RUNYON

S. WILSON

J. EVANS

01

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SITE
13996 13 MILE RD
CERESCO, MI 49033

N

S

W E

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

9

Page 41 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 42 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 43 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 45 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The South 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West. 
 
16-290-021-04 
 

Page 46 of 215



CATV
CATV

CATV
CATV

75.0'

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

R
.O

.W
. L

IN
E

0.7'WEST OF
PARCEL LINE

2.0' WEST OF
PARCEL LINE

75' WD. CONSUMERS
ENERGY EASEMENT
L. 1839, PG. 441
L. 1839, PG. 442

LA
RRY T. A

ND D
ENA S.

 N
EWMAN

13844 13 M
ILE

 ROAD

CERESC
O, M

I 4
9033

PARCEL I
.D

. 1
3-16-290-021-04

PARCEL A
CREAGE 10.15 ACRES

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

O
H

O
H

O
H

O
H

OH OH

S89°56'13"E  1066.46' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29

S89°56'13"E  1328.25' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29

S89°56'19"E  261.78' (M)

13
 M

IL
E

 R
O

A
D

(6
6'

 W
ID

E
 R

.O
.W

.)

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

  3
32

.4
7'

 (M
) E

A
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
SO

U
TH

 1
/2

 O
F

TH
E 

N
O

R
TH

 1
/2

 O
F 

TH
E 

N
O

R
TH

W
ES

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
TH

E
N

O
R

TH
W

ES
T 

1/
4 

O
F 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

9

12

W
E

S
T 

LI
N

E
 S

E
C

TI
O

N
 2

9
S0

0°
21

'3
9"

W
(M

)
33

2.
44

' (
M

)

13.68
14

4.
44

63
.5

3

116.69

181.04

33
2.

34
' (

M
)

19
95

.6
2'

 (M
)

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY

SITE
13844 13 MILE RD
CERESCO, MI 49033

EXISTING LEGEND                            

WATER MAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER

FIBER OPTIC
GAS
ELECTRICAL
FENCE
HYDRANT
GATE VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)
WATER MAIN MANHOLE
SQUARE CATCH BASIN
ROUND CATCH BASIN
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

END SECTION
CULVERT
STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT
SIGN
UTILITY POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT
LIGHT POLE

RISER
ELECTRICAL BOX

TREE

GUY WIRE

FLAG POLE
MAILBOX

WTR WTR

STM STM

SAN SAN

FO FO

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

E E

W

S

D

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE E
T

CABLETV CATV CATV

OVERHEAD UTILITY OH OH

X X X X X X X X X X X

CONCRETE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

GRAVEL

RIP-RAP

0'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 60'

120'60'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION PER TITLE POLICY:

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE SOUTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29,
TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST.

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:
TO: (I) MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORTAION; (II)
THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND; (III) MICHIGAN LAND BANK
AUTHORITY; (IV) MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ALLIANCE; (V) CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY):

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021
MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND
TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND
NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 2, 3, 4, 5, 8, 13, 16, 17, 18, AND 19 OF
TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON
02/14/2023.

__________ ________________ Dated: _________________
JEFFREY EVANS, PS
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 47637
JEFF.EVANS@SME-USA.COM

SURVEYORS NOTES:
1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THE SITE IS NAD83 MICHIGAN STATE

PLANE, SOUTH ZONE, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

2. DATE OF SURVEY: FEBRUARY 14, 2023.

3. SOME FEATURES SHOWN ON SURVEY MAY BE OUT OF SCALE
FOR CLARITY.

4. DIMENSIONS ON THIS SURVEY ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND
DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. ACTUAL PROPERTY ACREAGE EQUALS 10.15 ACRES.

6. SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE A PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 26025C0220C, WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF 04/04/2011.

7. EVIDENCE OF EARTH MOVING WORK WAS NOT OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

8. NO EVIDENCE OF CHANGES IN RIGHT OF WAY OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF THE FIELD SURVEY.

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO. 131199044CML,
WITH AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY 10, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

1

2

3

ANY DEFECT, LIEN, ENCUMBRANCE, ADVERSE CLAIM, OR OTHER MATTER THAT
APPEARS FOR THE FIRST TIME IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OR IS CREATED, ATTACHES, OR
IS DISCLOSED BETWEEN THE COMMITMENT DATE AND THE DATE ON WHICH ALL OF
THE SCHEDULE B, PART I—REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

a. RIGHTS OR CLAIMS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC
RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

b. ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION OR ADVERSE
CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE DISCLOSED BY AN
ACCURATE AND COMPLETE SURVEY OF THE LAND. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

c. EASEMENTS OR CLAIMS OF EASEMENTS NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS
AND EXISTING WATER, MINERAL, OIL AND EXPLORATION RIGHTS. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

d. ANY LIEN, OR RIGHT TO A LIEN, FOR SERVICES, LABOR, OR MATERIAL,
HERETOFORE OR HEREAFTER FURNISHED, IMPOSED BY LAW AND NOT SHOWN
BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

e. ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS, MINERAL, MINING RIGHTS AND/OR RESERVATIONS
THEREOF. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

f. TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN AS EXISTING LIENS BY
THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

NO LIABILITY IS ASSUMED BY THE COMPANY FOR TAX INCREASE OCCASIONED BY
RETROACTIVE REVALUATION OR CHANGE IN LAND USAGE OR LOSS OF ANY PRINCIPAL
RESIDENCE EXEMPTION STATUS FOR THE LAND. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

THE POLICY DOES NOT INSURE AGAINST UNPAID WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC OR GAS
CHARGES, IF ANY, THAT HAVE NOT BEEN LEVIED AS TAXES AGAINST THE LAND. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

TAXES AND/OR ASSESSMENTS WHICH BECOME A LIEN OR BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE
SUBSEQUENT TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE HEREIN. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF TENANTS UNDER UNRECORDED LEASES AND ANY AND ALL PARTIES
CLAIMING BY, THROUGH AND THEREUNDER.(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

EASEMENT RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF ANY AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, PUBLIC OR
OTHERWISE, OVER AND ACROSS THE LAND FOR THE LOCATION, SERVICING AND
MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES LOCATED ON, OVER OR UNDER SAID LAND, IF ANY. (AS
SHOWN HEREIN)

FUTURE ADVANCE MORTGAGE TO SECURE AN INDEBTEDNESS IN THE AMOUNT OF
$50,000.00, FROM LARRY T. NEWMAN AND DENA S. NEWMAN, HUSBAND AND WIFE,
MORTGAGOR, TO KELLOGG COMMUNITY CU, MORTGAGEE, DATED APRIL 20, 2021,
RECORDED ON MAY 4, 2021, IN LIBER 4534, PAGE 0824. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH AS
LIBER 4652, PAGE 0412 AND RE-RECORDED IN LIBER 4653, PAGE 0233. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

AN OIL AND GAS LEASE FOR THE TERM THEREIN PROVIDED WITH CERTAIN
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS, TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AS
SET FORTH THEREIN, DATED JANUARY 25, 1983, THEO M. CORLIS, A SINGLE WOMAN,
LESSOR, RUSS VAN BELOJA, LESSEE, RECORDED ON FEBRUARY 1, 1983, AS LIBER 1266,
PAGE 623 AND ANY ASSIGNMENTS THEREOF. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

AN OIL AND GAS LEASE FOR THE TERM THEREIN PROVIDED WITH CERTAIN
COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS, TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AS
SET FORTH THEREIN, DATED JULY 27, 1966, THEO M. CORLIS (SINGLE), LESSOR,
THOMAS B. MASK, LESSEE, RECORDED ON NOVEMBER 23, 1966, AS LIBER 877, PAGE 83
AND ANY ASSIGNMENTS THEREOF.(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 1839, PAGE 441 AND IN LIBER 1839,
PAGE 442. (AS SHOWN HEREIN)

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS
OF 13 MILE ROAD. (13 MILE ROAD (66' R.O.W.) EAST R.O.W. LINE AS DEPICTED
HEREIN)

GRANT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND (THE
"MSF"), WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 N WASHINGTON SQUARE, LANSING, MI 48933, AND
MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, A MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT
CORPORATION, WHOSE ADDRESS IS 323 WEST MICHIGAN AVENUE, MARSHALL,
MICHIGAN 49068 (“MAEDA”), DATED _____________, RECORDED ON __________ IN LIBER
_____, PAGE_________. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

4

5

6

COMBINED SEWER COMB

N

S

W E

N

S

W E

FIRE LINE FL FL FL FL FL

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE.  LOCATIONS OBTAINED BY FRANCHISE UTILITY
AGENCIES, MUNICIPAL AGENCIES AND/OR OWNER PROVIDED RECORD DRAWINGS. NO
GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR
ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY WARNING!!

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. NEITHER
THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, OF NEARBY STRUCTURES,
NOR OF OTHER PERSONS.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

7

8

9

13

10

11

12

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

FI
LE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
\\S

m
e-

in
c\

pz
\W

IP
\0

91
43

4.
03

\C
AD

\D
es

ig
n 

Fi
le

s\
SU

R\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\T
op

o-
Al

ta
-B

nd
ry

\R
ev

1\
AL

TA
\0

91
43

4.
03

-1
6-

29
0-

02
1-

04
-A

LT
A.

dw
g

Fe
b 

28
,  

20
23

 - 
3:

54
pm

 - 
sa

m
an

th
a.

pa
ra

di
se

Project

NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE PRIOR
CONSENT OF SME

c

REV BYDATEISSUED FOR

Revisions

Orientation

Project Location

Sheet Name

Scale

Surveyor's Seal

SME Project No.

Project Manager:

CADD:

Checked By:

Sheet No.

www.sme-usa.com

DRAWING NOTE: SCALE DEPICTED IS MEANT FOR 24" X 36" AND
WILL SCALE INCORRECTLY IF PRINTED ON ANY OTHER SIZE

MEDIA

Date

Field Chief:

Reviewed By:

2023

MARSHALL MEGASITE

13844 13 MILE ROAD,
CERESCO, MI 49033

02/22/2023

091434.03

J. EVANS

B. JACKSON & J. GLEN

J. RUNYON & T. MAHANY

S. WILSON

J. EVANS

01

14

Page 47 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 48 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 49 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 51 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The North 1/2 of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 29, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, EXCEPT the West 2.0 acres thereof. 
 
16-290-021-05 
 

Page 52 of 215



BENTLEY BOULEVARD
(49.5' WIDE R.O.W.)

HARRY PLU
SH

NIK

BENTLE
Y BOULE

VARD

CERESC
O, M

I 4
9033

PARCEL I
.D

. 1
3-16-290-021-05

8.14 ACRES

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X X

X

X X X X X

NORTH LINE SECTION 29
SOUTH LINE SECTION 20 S89°56'16"E  2656.71' (M)

S0
0°

21
'3

9"
W

  3
32

.3
4'

 (M
) E

A
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
W

ES
T 

2 
A

C
R

ES

N
00

°2
1'

39
"E

  3
32

.3
4'

 (M
) E

A
ST

 L
IN

E 
O

F 
TH

E 
N

O
R

TH
 1

/2
 O

F 
TH

E 
N

O
R

TH
 1

/2
O

F 
TH

E 
N

O
R

TH
W

ES
T 

1/
4 

O
F 

TH
E 

N
O

R
TH

W
ES

T 
1/

4 
O

F 
SE

C
TI

O
N

 2
9

S89°56'18"E  1066.46' (M)

S89°56'13"E  1066.46' (M) SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29 1.1' WEST OF
PARCEL LINE

0.9' EAST OF
PARCEL LINE

262.11' (M)

LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE
SURVEY

EXISTING LEGEND                            

WATER MAIN
STORM SEWER
SANITARY SEWER

FIBER OPTIC
GAS
ELECTRICAL
FENCE
HYDRANT
GATE VALVE
POST INDICATOR VALVE (PIV)
WATER MAIN MANHOLE
SQUARE CATCH BASIN
ROUND CATCH BASIN
BEEHIVE CATCH BASIN

END SECTION
CULVERT
STORM MANHOLE

SANITARY MANHOLE

CLEAN OUT
SIGN
UTILITY POLE

LANDSCAPE LIGHT
LIGHT POLE

RISER
ELECTRICAL BOX

TREE

GUY WIRE

FLAG POLE
MAILBOX

WTR WTR

STM STM

SAN SAN

FO FO

GAS GAS GAS GAS GAS

E E

W

S

D

ELECTRICAL MANHOLE E
T

CABLETV CATV CATV

OVERHEAD UTILITY OH OH

X X X X X X X X X X X

CONCRETE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

GRAVEL

RIP-RAP

0'

GRAPHIC SCALE: 1" = 50'

100'50'

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.
THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 29, TOWN 2
SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST, EXCEPT THE WEST 2.0 ACRES THEREOF.

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:
TO: (I)  MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; (II)
THE MICHIGAN STRATEGIC FUND;(III) MICHIGAN LAND BANK
AUTHORITY; (IV) MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ALLIANCE; (V) CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON
WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021
MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY
ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 2,3 ,4 ,5 , 8 ,13, 16, 17, 18,
AND 19 OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED
ON 02/11/2021.

__________ ________________ Dated: _________________
JEFFREY EVANS, PS
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 47637
JEFF.EVANS@SME-USA.COM

SURVEYORS NOTES:
1. THE BEARING BASIS FOR THE SITE IS NAD83 MICHIGAN STATE

PLANE, SOUTH ZONE, INTERNATIONAL FEET.

2. DATE OF SURVEY: FEBRUARY 14, 2023.

3. SOME FEATURES SHOWN ON SURVEY MAY BE OUT OF SCALE
FOR CLARITY.

4. DIMENSIONS ON THIS SURVEY ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND
DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. NO BUILDINGS EXISTING ON THE SURVEYED PROPERTY.

6. ACTUAL PROPERTY ACREAGE EQUALS 8.14 ACRES.

7. SITE IS LOCATED WITHIN ZONE A PER THE FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP, MAP NUMBER 26025C0220C, WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF 074/04/2011.

8. EVIDENCE OF EARTH MOVING WORK WAS NOT OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF FIELD SURVEY.

9. NO EVIDENCE OF CHANGES IN RIGHT OF WAY OBSERVED AT
THE TIME OF FIELD SURVEY.

SCHEDULE B II EXCEPTIONS:
(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT FILE NO. 131195432CTM,
WITH AND EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER 8TH, 2022 AT 8:00 AM)

1

2

3

ANY DEFECT, LIEN, ENCUMBRANCE, ADVERSE CLAIM, OR OTHER MATTER THAT APPEARS FOR THE FIRST TIME IN THE
PUBLIC RECORDS OR IS CREATED, ATTACHES, OR IS DISCLOSED BETWEEN THE COMMITMENT DATE AND THE DATE
ON WHICH ALL OF THE SCHEDULE B, PART I—REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER, NOTHING TO
DEPICT)

a. RIGHTS OR CLAIMS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

b. ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE
TITLE THAT WOULD BE DISCLOSED BY AN ACCURATE AND COMPLETE SURVEY OF THE LAND. (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

c. EASEMENTS OR CLAIMS OF EASEMENTS NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS AND EXISTING WATER,
MINERAL, OIL AND EXPLORATION RIGHTS. (BLANKET IN NATURE)

d. ANY LIEN, OR RIGHT TO A LIEN, FOR SERVICES, LABOR, OR MATERIAL, HERETOFORE OR HEREAFTER
FURNISHED, IMPOSED BY LAW AND NOT SHOWN BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

e. ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS, MINERAL, MINING RIGHTS AND/OR RESERVATIONS THEREOF. (NOT A SURVEY
MATTER)

f. TAXES OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS WHICH ARE NOT SHOWN AS EXISTING LIENS BY THE PUBLIC RECORDS.
(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

NO LIABILITY IS ASSUMED BY THE COMPANY FOR TAX INCREASE OCCASIONED BY RETROACTIVE REVALUATION OR
CHANGE IN LAND USAGE OR LOSS OF ANY PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE EXEMPTION STATUS FOR THE LAND. (NOT A
SURVEY MATTER)

THE POLICY DOES NOT INSURE AGAINST UNPAID WATER, SEWER, ELECTRIC OR GAS CHARGES, IF ANY, THAT HAVE
NOT BEEN LEVIED AS TAXES AGAINST THE LAND. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

TAXES AND/OR ASSESSMENTS WHICH BECOME A LIEN OR BECOME DUE AND PAYABLE SUBSEQUENT TO THE
EFFECTIVE DATE HEREIN. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF TENANTS UNDER UNRECORDED LEASES AND ANY AND ALL PARTIES CLAIMING BY, THROUGH AND
THEREUNDER. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

EASEMENT RIGHTS IN FAVOR OF ANY AND ALL UTILITY COMPANIES, PUBLIC OR OTHERWISE, OVER AND ACROSS
THE LAND FOR THE LOCATION, SERVICING AND MAINTENANCE OF FACILITIES LOCATED ON, OVER OR UNDER SAID
LAND, IF ANY. (NOTHING TO DEPICT)

TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH AS LIBER 4642, PAGE 0639.
(NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

ANY AND ALL OIL, GAS AND MINERAL RIGHTS AND RESERVATIONS OF EVERY KIND AND NATURE WHETHER
RECORDED OR UNRECORDED AND ALL RIGHTS PERTINENT THERETO. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS OF BENTLEY BOULEVARD.
(THE SOUTH LINE OF BENTLEY BOULEVARD NORTH LINE OF SECTION 29 AS DEPICTED)

GRANT OF RIGHTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN MICHIGAN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (THE "MEDC"),
WHOSE ADDRESS IS 300 N WASHINGTON SQUARE, LANSING, MI 48933, AND MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE, A
MICHIGAN NON-PROFIT CORPORATION, DATED _____________ RECORDED ON __________ IN LIBER _____, PAGE
_____________. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

4

5

6

COMBINED SEWER COMB

N

S

W E

N

S

W E

FIRE LINE FL FL FL FL FL

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN
ON THIS DRAWING ARE APPROXIMATE.  LOCATIONS OBTAINED BY FRANCHISE UTILITY
AGENCIES, MUNICIPAL AGENCIES AND/OR OWNER PROVIDED RECORD DRAWINGS. NO
GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR
ACCURACY THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE FOR
DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS IN THE FIELD PRIOR TO
THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

UTILITY WARNING!!

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR. NEITHER
THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, OF NEARBY STRUCTURES,
NOR OF OTHER PERSONS.

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

PL
O

T 
D

AT
E:

FI
LE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

:
\\s

m
e-

in
c\

pz
\W

IP
\0

91
43

4.
03

\C
AD

\D
es

ig
n 

Fi
le

s\
SU

R\
D

ra
w

in
gs

\T
op

o-
Al

ta
-B

nd
ry

\R
ev

1\
AL

TA
\0

91
43

4.
03

-1
6-

29
0-

02
1-

05
-A

LT
A.

dw
g

Fe
b 

27
,  

20
23

 - 
12

:4
2p

m
 - 

sa
ra

h.
w

ils
on

Project

NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE PRIOR
CONSENT OF SME

c

REV BYDATEISSUED FOR

Revisions

Orientation

Project Location

Sheet Name

Scale

Surveyor's Seal

SME Project No.

Project Manager:

CADD:

Checked By:

Sheet No.

www.sme-usa.com

DRAWING NOTE: SCALE DEPICTED IS MEANT FOR 24" X 36" AND
WILL SCALE INCORRECTLY IF PRINTED ON ANY OTHER SIZE

MEDIA

Date

Field Chief:

Reviewed By:

Key Map

2023

MARSHALL MICHIGAN
MEGASITE

MARSHALL TOWNSHIP,
CALHOUN COUNTY, MI

02/27/2023

091434.03

J. EVANS

B. JACKSON

J. RUNYON

S. WILSON

J. EVANS

01

7

8

9

10

11

SITE
13996 13 MILE RD
CERESCO, MI 49033

Page 53 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 54 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 55 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 57 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
A Parcel of land in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 20, Township 2 
South Range 6 West, described as follows: Beginning at a point distant South 89 degrees 00 
minutes East, 1331.6 feet, North 01 degree 06 minutes East. 18.29 and North 67 degrees 14 
minutes 40 seconds West. 17.23 feet from the South Quarter post of said Section 20, thence North 
01 degree 06 minutes East 215.19 feet; thence North 67 degrees 14 minutes 40 seconds West, 150 
feet parallel to and distant 60 feet from the centerline of the Battle Creek-Marshall Road; thence 
South 22 degrees 45 minutes 20 seconds West. 200 feet; thence South 67 degrees 14 minutes 40 
seconds East 229.41 to the place of beginning. 
 
16-201-018-00 
 

Page 58 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO. 131198497CML WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY
3, 2023.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN
COUNTY, STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 6, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 22, 2023

Page 59 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 60 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 61 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 63 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
Beginning on the South line of Highway U.S. 12 (Michigan Avenue) at a point distant North 67 
degrees 06 minutes West, 234.82 feet from its intersection with the East line of Section 29, 
Township 2 South, Range 6 West, and running thence North 67 degrees 06 minutes West along 
said South line of Highway U.S. 12, 371.08 feet; thence South 10 degrees 04 minutes West 264.6 
feet; thence South 67 degrees 06 minutes East, parallel with said U.S. 12, 354.1 feet; thence North 
13 degrees 42 minutes East 261.3 feet to the place of beginning; EXCEPTING therefrom the 
Easterly 202 feet of the above described parcel. 
 
16-290-012-00 
 

Page 64 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY
TITLE COMMITMENT NO. 131198921CML WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF FEBRUARY
7, 2023.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

9. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH IN
LIBER 4627, PAGE 66.  (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL BLANKET IN NATURE)

10. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS RECORDING NO. LIBER 718, PAGE 364
AND LIBER 846, PAGE 309. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS SHOWN)

11. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT, GRANTED TO MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY,
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. LIBER 1508, PAGE 572. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL
AS SHOWN)

12. RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS
OF ANY STREET, ROAD, ALLEY OR HIGHWAY.

14. 

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131198921CML,
COMMITMENT DATE: FEBRUARY 7, 2023 AT 8:00 AM.)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF
MARSHALL.

BEGINNING ON THE SOUTH LINE OF HIGHWAY U.S. 12 (MICHIGAN AVENUE) AT A POINT
DISTANT NORTH 67 DEGREES 06 MINUTES WEST, 234.82 FEET FROM ITS
INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF SECTION 29, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6
WEST, AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 06 MINUTES WEST ALONG SAID
SOUTH LINE OF HIGHWAY U.S. 12, 371.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 10 DEGREES 04
MINUTES WEST 264.6 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 06 MINUTES EAST, PARALLEL
WITH SAID U.S. 12, 354.1 FEET; THENCE NORTH 13 DEGREES 42 MINUTES EAST 261.3
FEET TO THE PLACE OF BEGINNING; EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE EASTERLY 202
FEET OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 13, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 8, 2023

Page 65 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 66 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 67 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 69 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The Easterly 202 feet of the following described parcel: Beginning on the South line of Highway 
U.S. 12 (Michigan Avenue) at a point distant North 67 degrees 06 minutes West 234.82 feet from 
its intersection with the East line of Section 29, Town 2 South, Range 6 West and running thence 
North 67 degrees 06 minutes West along said South line of Highway U.S. 12, 371.08 feet; thence 
South 10 degrees 04 minutes West 264.6 feet; thence South 67 degrees 06 minutes East parallel 
with said U.S. 12, 354.1 feet; thence North 13 degrees 42 minutes East 261.3 feet to the place of 
beginning. 
 
16-290-015-00 
 

Page 70 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY TITLE
COMMITMENT NO. 131195418CTM WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER 8, 2022.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE TITLE
COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN ZONE PER
FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011,
FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY, STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE
CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS
SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, OR
BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT OF WAY LINES,
IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR BY THE CONTROLLING
JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS
OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR SERVITUDES, AS
SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE DUMP, SUMP, OR
SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED ON THE
PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

13. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED TO
MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 1501, PAGE 209.
(AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS SHOWN)

14. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED TO
CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT
RECORDED AS LIBER 846, PAGE 308. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS SHOWN)

15. AN OIL AND GAS LEASE FOR THE TERM THEREIN PROVIDED WITH CERTAIN COVENANTS,
CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS, TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS, IF ANY, AS SET FORTH THEREIN,
DATED DECEMBER 20, 1958, CLYDE J. BEHL AND MARYANN BEHL (HUSBAND AND LESSOR, LESTER
A. SHIMMEL, LESSEE, RECORDED AS LIBER 813, PAGE 83 AND ANY ASSIGNMENTS THEREOF.
(AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

16. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED TO
CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT
RECORDED AS LIBER 718, PAGE 364. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS SHOWN)

17. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF OPTION AGREEMENT SET FORTH AS LIBER 4593, PAGE
224. (EXPIRED 10/4/2022).

18. RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS OF ANY
STREET, ROAD, ALLEY OR HIGHWAY.

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131195418CTM, COMMITMENT DATE:
DECEMBER 8,2022 AT 8:00 AM.)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE EASTERLY 202 FEET OF THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: BEGINNING ON THE SOUTH LINE
OF HIGHWAY U.S. 12 (MICHIGAN AVENUE) AT A POINT DISTANT NORTH 67 DEGREES 06' WEST 234.82
FEET FROM ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF SECTION 29, TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST
AND RUNNING THENCE NORTH 67 DEGREES 06' WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF HIGHWAY U.S. 12,
371.08
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 10 DEGREES 04' WEST 264.6 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 67 DEGREES 06' EAST
PARALLEL WITH SAID U.S. 12, 354.1 FEET; THENCE NORTH 13 DEGREES 42' EAST 261.3 FEET TO THE
PLACE OF BEGINNING.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 13, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 8, 2023

Page 71 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 72 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 73 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 74 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 75 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
The West 470 feet of that part of the North 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 South, 
Range 6 West  Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, which lies South of Michigan 
Avenue extended (formally known as U.S. 12 and M-17) the Southerly line of said road being the 
South line of premises conveyed by deed recorded in Liber 177, page 432 (recorded as Liber 1777 
of Deeds at Page 432 in the most recent deed). 
 
16-281-015-00 
 

Page 76 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO. 131195419CTM WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF
DECEMBER 8, 2022.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131195419CTM, DATED DECEMBER 8,
2022)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL.

THE WEST 470 FEET OF THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 28, TOWN
2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST MARSHALL TOWNSHIP, CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN, WHICH LIES SOUTH
OF MICHIGAN AVENUE EXTENDED (FORMALLY KNOWN AS U.S. 12 AND M-17) THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF
SAID ROAD BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF PREMISES CONVEYED BY DEED RECORDED IN LIBER 177 OF
DEEDS AT PAGE 432.

11. RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS OF ANY STREET,
ROAD, ALLEY OR HIGHWAY.

14. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION TO PURCHASE PROPERTY
SET FORTH IN LIBER 4691 PAGE 368, BETWEEN JOHN A. HERMAN AND MARSHALL AREA ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT ALLIANCE. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

15. ANY RIGHTS INCIDENTAL TO THE OWNERSHIP AND DEVELOPMENT OF THE 1/2 OIL AND GAS RIGHTS
RESERVATION IN THE DOCUMENT, ENTITLED AFFIDAVIT, DATED JANUARY 13, 1982, RECORDED
JANUARY 14, 1982, IN LIBER 1243 PAGE 876 AND WARRANTY DEED, DATED FEBRUARY 22, 1982,
RECORDED ON DECEMBER 9, 1982, IN LIBER 1263 PAGE 461. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET
IN NATURE)

16. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF LEASE SET FORTH AS RECORDING NO. LIBER 629 PAGE 5;
RELEASE OF OPTION RECORDED IN LIBER 643 PAGE 607. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN
NATURE)

17. A LEASEHOLD AS CREATED BY THAT CERTAIN LEASE DATED JUNE 8, 2012, EXECUTED BY JOHN &
JACQUELINE HERMAN, AS LESSOR, AND ADAMS OUTDOOR ADVERTISING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, AS
LESSEE, AS REFERENCED IN THE DOCUMENT ENTITLED MEMORANDUM OF LEASE, WHICH WAS
RECORDED JUNE 28, 2012 AT LIBER 3714 PAGE 568, FOR THE TERM, UPON AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE
PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN SAID DOCUMENT, AND IN SAID LEASE. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS
SHOWN)

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 6, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 9, 2023

Page 77 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 78 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 79 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 81 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall.  
 
Parcel 1: 
The North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 28, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, lying 
Southerly of Michigan Avenue; EXCEPT the West 470 feet; ALSO EXCEPT commencing at the 
Southwest Corner of the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 28; thence East 470 
feet; thence North 363 feet to the point of beginning; thence East 600 feet; thence North 275 feet 
more or less; thence Northwesterly along the Southerly line of Michigan Avenue 638 feet more or 
less to a point lying North of the point of beginning; thence South 485 feet more or less to the point 
of beginning. 
 
16-281-015-01 
 
Parcel 2: 
The West 330 feet of the part of the Northeast Quarter of Section 28, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, 
lying South of Michigan Avenue extended (formerly known as U.S. 12 and M-17), the South line 
of said Michigan Avenue being the South line of premises first conveyed by Deed recorded in 
Liber 177 of Deeds, page 315, Calhoun County, Michigan. 
 
16-281-015-02 
 
Parcel 3: 
Commencing at the Southwest Corner of the North Half of the Northwest Quarter of Section 28, 
Township 2 South, Range 6 West; thence East 470 feet; thence North 363 feet to the point of 
beginning; thence East 600 feet; thence North 275 feet more or less; thence Northwesterly along 
the Southerly line of Michigan Avenue 638 feet more or less to a point lying North of the point of 
beginning; thence South 485 feet more or less to the point of beginning. 
 
16-281-015-05 
 

Page 82 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, TITLE COMMITMENT NO.
131195421CTM WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER 8, 2022.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT AND
ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN ZONE PER FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY
NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY, STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING
ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON
THIS SURVEY.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY
LANDFILL.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED ON THE PARCEL HEREIN
DESCRIBED.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 6, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 15, 2023

Page 83 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131198326CML,
DATED JANUARY 24, 2023 AT 08:00 AM

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF
MARSHALL.

PARCEL 2:
THE WEST 330 FEET OF THE PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 28,
TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST, LYING SOUTH OF MICHIGAN AVENUE EXTENDED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS U.S. 12 AND M-17), THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID MICHIGAN
AVENUE BEING THE SOUTH LINE OF PREMISES FIRST CONVEYED BY DEED
RECORDED IN LIBER 177 OF DEEDS, PAGE 315, CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN.

13-16-281-015-02

9. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY IN THE DOCUMENT
RECORDED IN LIBER 343, PAGE 48.(AS TO PARCEL 2) (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL -
UNABLE TO DETERMINE LOCATION)

10. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED IN LIBER 931, PAGE 564. (AS TO PARCEL 2)
(DOES NOT AFFECT SUBJECT PARCEL)

11. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF AFFIDAVIT AS SET FORTH IN THE
DOCUMENT RECORDED IN LIBER 1243, PAGE 876 (AS TO PARCEL 2) (AFFECTS
SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

12. OIL, GAS AND MINERAL RIGHTS AND RESERVATIONS OF EVERY KIND AND NATURE
AS RESERVED IN A WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN LIBER 1263, PAGE 457, AND ALL
RIGHTS PERTINENT THERETO. (AS TO PARCEL 2) (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL -
BLANKET IN NATURE)

14. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF CLAIM OF INTEREST IN OIL
AND GAS SET FORTH IN LIBER 1515, PAGE 488 (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL AS
SHOWN)

15. AFFIDAVIT ATTESTING THAT QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL PROPERTY OR QUALIFIED
FOREST SHALL REMAIN QUALIFIED AGRICULTURAL PROPERTY RECORDED AUGUST
16, 2012 IN LIBER 3726, PAGE 137. (AS TO PARCEL 2) (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL -
BLANKET IN NATURE)

16. AN OPTION TO PURCHASE SAID LAND WITH CERTAIN TERMS, COVENANT,
CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS AS SET FORTH THEREIN RECORDED LIBER 4631,
PAGE 862. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

17. RIGHTS OF THE PUBLIC TO ANY PORTION OF THE LAND LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDS
OF C DRIVE NORTH (AS TO PARCEL 3) AND WEST MICHIGAN AVENUE (M 96) (AS TO
PARCELS 1, 2, AND 3).

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 13, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 17, 2023

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO. 131198326CML WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY
24, 2023 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

Page 84 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, TITLE COMMITMENT NO.
131198326CML WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF JANUARY 24, 2023 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE TITLE COMMITMENT AND
ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN ZONE PER FLOOD
INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY
NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY, STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE
RATE MAP FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING
ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON
THIS SURVEY.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY
LANDFILL.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED ON THE PARCEL HEREIN
DESCRIBED.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 6, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 15, 2023

Page 85 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 86 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 87 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 89 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
Parcel 1: 
The East 355 feet of the West 685 feet of that part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 
South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, lying South of Michigan 
Avenue. 
 
16-281-015-03 
 
Parcel 2: 
That part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan, lying South of Michigan Avenue extended (formerly known as US 12 
and M-17), West of a line running North and South 1018.09 feet West of the East Section line and 
East of a line running North and South 685 feet East and of the North-South 1/4 line of said Section 
28. 
 
16-281-015-04 
 

Page 90 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO.131195422CTM WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER
8, 2022 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131195422CTM,
DATED DECEMBER 8, 2022 AT 8:00 AM)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF
MARSHALL.

THE EAST 355 FEET OF THE WEST 685 FEET OF THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4
OF SECTION 28, TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST, MARSHALL TOWNSHIP, CALHOUN
COUNTY, MICHIGAN, LYING SOUTH OF MICHIGAN AVENUE.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 13, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 17, 2023

14. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH
AS LIBER 4657, PAGE 457 (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

15. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED
AS LIBER 343, PAGE 48. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - UNABLE TO DETERMINE
LOCATION)

16. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO CONSUMERS POWER COMPANY (NOW KNOWN AS CONSUMERS
ENERGY) IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED AS LIBER 931, PAGE 564. (DOES NOT AFFECT
SUBJECT PARCEL)

18. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF AFFIDAVIT SET FORTH AS LIBER 1243,
PAGE 876. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

19. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF CLAIM OF INTERESTS IN OIL
AND GAS SET FORTH AS LIBER 1515, PAGE 488. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - AS
SHOWN)

Page 91 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO.131195423CTM WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE OF DECEMBER
8, 2022 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131195423CTM,
DATED DECEMBER 8, 2022 AT 8:00 AM)

LAND SITUATED IN THE STATE OF MICHIGAN, COUNTY OF CALHOUN, TOWNSHIP OF
MARSHALL.

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 28, TOWN 2 SOUTH, RANGE 6 WEST,
MARSHALL TOWNSHIP, CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN, LYING SOUTH OF MICHIGAN
AVENUE EXTENDED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS US 12 AND M-17), WEST OF A LINE
RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH 1018.09 FEET WEST OF THE EAST SECTION LINE AND
EAST OF A LINE RUNNING NORTH AND SOUTH 685 FEET EAST AND OF THE
NORTH-SOUTH 1/4 LINE OF SAID SECTION 28.

DESCRIBED FOR TAX PURPOSES AS: MARSHALL TWP SEC 28 NE 1/4 LYING SLY OF
MICHIGAN AVE EXC E 1018.09 FEET EXC N 685'.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on February 13, 2023

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    February 17, 2023

13. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF MEMORANDUM OF OPTION SET FORTH
AS LIBER 4657, PAGE 457 (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

14. RIGHT(S) OF WAY AND/OR EASEMENT(S) AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS
GRANTED TO MICHIGAN BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY IN A DOCUMENT RECORDED
AS LIBER 343, PAGE 48. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - UNABLE TO DETERMINE
LOCATION)

16. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF AFFIDAVIT SET FORTH AS LIBER 1243,
PAGE 876. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - BLANKET IN NATURE)

17. TERMS, COVENANTS, AND CONDITIONS OF NOTICE OF CLAIM OF INTERESTS IN OIL
AND GAS SET FORTH AS LIBER 1515, PAGE 488. (AFFECTS SUBJECT PARCEL - AS
SHOWN)

Page 92 of 215



 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MARSHALL – TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL 
CONTRACT FOR CONDITIONAL TRANSFER OF PROPERTY 

 
 This Agreement made on the _____ day of _____________, 2023, between the CITY OF 
MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, having offices at 323 West Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “City”) and the TOWNSHIP OF MARSHALL, a Township duly 
organized under the laws of the State of Michigan, and existing in Calhoun County, Michigan, 
having offices at 13551 Myron Avery Drive, Marshall, Michigan 49068 (the “Township”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Township have adopted a Master 425 Agreement dated 
February 9, 2022 for the purpose of providing utility services which are available in the City to 
Township properties upon the request of a Township property owner, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, the owner of the 
property described on Schedule 1 attached hereto (“Property”) has requested that the City extend 
sewer and water services to the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of municipal services by the City to the Property would further 
the economic well-being of both the City and the Township and increase the probability of 
additional development of the Property, and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City has available sewer and water capacity to service the Property, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties have each conducted a public hearing to receive input on the 
proposed transfer of property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, by authority of Act 425 of Public Acts of 1984 and pursuant to the 
Master 425 Agreement entered into between the City and the Township and in consideration of the 
mutual promises herein set forth, BE IT AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Township consents to the transfer to the City of the Property. 
 

2. The City agrees to accept the transfer of the Property for all purposes allowed under 
Public Act 425 of 1984, as amended, to make available municipal services to the 
Property provided that the Property owner and other users of the utilities extended from 
the City to the Property shall pay for the cost of the extension. 

 
3. The transfer of the Property contemplated by this agreement shall occur at midnight on 

April 21, 2023. 
 

4. Following transfer, and during the term of this Agreement, the City shall have full 
jurisdiction over the property subject to the following limitations: 

 
Land usages shall be subject to the Joint Municipal Planning Commission 
pursuant to the provisions of the Master 425 Agreement. 
 

Page 93 of 215



 

5. The City and Township agree that the City shall have the authority to assess and collect 
ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the Property and any improvements thereon 
during 2024 and for the remainder of the term of this Agreement.  The Township shall 
have the authority to assess and collect ad valorem taxes, real and personal, on the 
Property and any improvements thereon through calendar year 2023 
 
The City and Township further agree that commencing in the year 2024 and continuing 
through the fiftieth (50th) full calendar year following the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy for the first use on the Property, all such taxes which the City collects for 
its own general operating fund purposes only, and which are attributable to the Property 
for the term of this Agreement shall be shared between the City and the Township as 
follows: 
 

A. The Township shall receive the equivalent of (residential – 2; commercial – 4; 
industrial – 4) mill levied on the taxable value of the Property for the taxable 
year as established by the City subject to any subsequent adjustments resulting 
from tax appeals.  The City shall transmit the Township’s share of such 
revenues annually on or before 30 days after receipt. 
 

B. Thereafter, all tax revenues from the Property shall be collected and retained 
by the City. 

 
6. Except as provided in paragraph 7, upon termination, expiration or non-renewal of this 

Agreement, jurisdiction of the Property shall return to the Township and the City will 
have no further rights or interests in the Property except that the City shall own the 
utility infrastructure. 
 

7. In the event that the City shall not share tax revenues from the Property as provided in 
paragraph 5 or shall breach any other provision of this Agreement, the Township shall 
be entitled to terminate this Agreement, whereupon jurisdiction of the Property shall 
revert to the Township or the Township may pursue whatever other legal remedies are 
available to the Township. 

 
8. Any liability the City or the Township incurs to a third party as a result of the 

performance of duties or the exercise or rights imposed or granted hereunder shall be 
jointly shared and defended in the same proportion as the taxes are shared as described 
in paragraph 5. 

 
9. The burden of all tax abatements shall be shared by the City and the Township in the 

same percentage as the millage is shared.  In the event the City reduces its millage, the 
Township’s share of millage shall be proportionately reduced provided no additional 
taxes are levied by the City to replace the reduction in millage. 

 
10. Sewer and water rates charged to the Property owner shall not be greater than the rates 

charged in the City for similar users.  Property owners shall contribute to repairs and 
capital improvements to the sewage treatment facilities, water purification plant, well 
facilities, and distribution systems in the same manner as similar users within the City 
of Marshall. 

 
 

Page 94 of 215



 

11. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and the Master 425 
Development Agreement, the terms of the Master 425 Development Agreement shall 
control unless there is a specific reference in the conflicting provision that it is intended 
to prevail despite the Master 425 Development Agreement. 
 

12. Within fifteen (15) days of execution of this contract, the City Clerk shall file a 
duplicate original of this contract with the Calhoun County Clerk, the Michigan 
Secretary of State and the Calhoun County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
WITNESSES:      CITY OF MARSHALL 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Michelle Eubank, Clerk 

 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    )ss 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by Derek 
N Perry, City Manager and Michelle Eubank, City Clerk of the City of Marshall, on behalf of said City. 
 
        
             
       ______________________________ 
        

 
______________________________ 

        
Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95 of 215



 

WITNESSES:      MARSHALL TOWNSHIP 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       David Bosserd, Supervisor 
 
 
__________________________________ By:  ______________________________________ 
       Jeff Albaugh, Clerk 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    )ss 

COUNTY OF CALHOUN ) 

 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of _____________, 2023 by David 
Bosserd, Supervisory and Jeff Albaugh, Clerk of Marshall Township, on behalf of said Township. 

 

             
       ______________________________ 

        

______________________________ 

        

Notary Public, Calhoun County, MI 

       My commission expires __________ 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Page 96 of 215



SCHEDULE 1 
 
Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall. 
 
PARCEL 1: 

A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun 
County, Michigan, described as follows:  That part of the following described premises lying in 
Section 19:  Commencing where Ceresco Road intersects Section line between Sections 29 and 
30, running thence North on Section line to the Territorial Road (so called), Northwest in middle 
of said road about 60 rods, South to Ceresco Road, East to beginning, in Sections 19 and 30, 
Town 2 South, Range 6 West, to be taken off the East part of said description excepting 
therefrom, all that part of the above lying North of a line described as:  Beginning at a point on 
the East line of said Section 19, distant 1099.09 feet South of the East 1/4 post of said Section, 
thence bearing North 77 degrees 50 minutes West in a straight line to the West line of the above 
described parcel and the end of said line. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-190-006-01 
 
PARCEL 2: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall 
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan; thence East 80 rods; thence North 39-1/2 rods; thence 
West 80 rods; thence South to the place of beginning. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-193-003-00 
 
PARCEL 3: 
A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as follows: Start on the 
North bank of the Kalamazoo River at a point 10 rods East from the North and South 1/4 line of 
Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West; go North on West line of land of D.H. Godfrey, 
(formerly) to the East and West 1/4 line of Section 19; go West to a point 80 rods East from the 
West line of said Section 19; go South to the North bank of the Kalamazoo River, go Easterly 
along North bank of Kalamazoo River to start. EXCEPTING the North 20 acres thereof. Also, 
EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-193-006-00 
 
PARCEL 4: 
Part of the East 1/2 of Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, lying Southerly of Old US-12 
Highway, described as beginning on the East & West 1/4 line at a point distant 165 feet East of 
the North & South 1/4 line, thence South to South Section line, thence East 1742.4 feet, thence 
North to old US-12 Highway right of way, thence Northwesterly along right of way to a point 
165 feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence South 184.33 feet to beginning; EXCEPT 
beginning in the Northeast corner of said parcel, thence Northwesterly along the Southerly 
highway right of way line 1233.8 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet, thence 
South 67 degrees 29 minutes East 189.99 feet, thence South 12 degrees 35 minutes West 474.63 
feet, thence South 87 degrees 01 minute East 655 feet, thence South 84 degrees 51 minutes East 

Page 97 of 215



534 feet, thence North 402.7 feet to beginning; ALSO EXCEPT Beginning in the center of old 
US-12 Highway 165 feet Southeasterly of the North & South 1/4 line, thence Southeasterly in 
highway 250.12 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet, thence North 67 
degrees 29 minutes West 105.66 feet, thence North to beginning.  
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-193-009-00 
 
PARCEL 5: 
A parcel of land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as: Beginning at a point 
10 rods East of the center of Section 19, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan, running thence South 69.57 chains more or less to the center of 
Ceresco Road, thence East along the center of said road 26.40 chains, more or less, thence North 
61.20 chains, more or less, to the Southerly line of the right of way formerly occupied by 
Michigan Traction Company, thence Northwesterly along said Southerly line of the right of way 
to the intersection thereof with the East and West 1/4 line of aforesaid Section 19, thence West to 
the place of beginning. EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 19, Town 2 South, 
Range 6 West. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-300-006-00 
 
PARCEL 6: 
Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30, Town 
2 South, Range 6 West, thence South to the Kalamazoo River, thence Southeasterly along said 
river to a point 165 feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence North to Section line, thence 
West to place of beginning.  EXCEPT Beginning in the centerline of C Drive North 1893.5 feet 
East of the West Section line, thence North 501 feet, thence East 336.14 feet, thence South 501 
feet, thence West 336.14 feet. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-300-018-00 
 
PARCEL 7: 
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall 
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, thence East 80 rods, thence South to the line of the 
Michigan Central Railroad, thence along the line of said Michigan Central Railroad to the town 
line between Marshall Township and Emmett Township, thence North to the place of beginning. 
 
Parcel Number: 13-16-300-021-00 
 
 

Page 98 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO's. 131199745CML REVISION 1 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE
OF FEBRUARY 16, 2023 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

9) PARCELS 16-190-006-01, 16-193-009-00, 16-193-006-00, 16-193-003-00, 16-300-021-00,
16-300-018-00 AND 16-300-006-00, COMBINED TOTAL OF 407.16 ACRES OF LAND.

To: Michigan Economic Development Corporaton, The Michigan Strategic Fund, Michigan Land
Bank Authority, Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance, Chicago Title Insurance
Company:

This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in
accordance with the 2021 Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land Title
Surveys, jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS and includes items 2, 3, 4, 8, 13, 16,
17, 18, and 19 of Table A thereof, The fieldwork was completed on March 9, 2023.

MIDWESTERN CONSULTING, LLC.

By:
        Patrick L. Hastings, P.S. No. 37277

Date:    March 24, 2023

Page 99 of 215



©

M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131199745CML
REVISION 2, DATED FEBRUARY 16, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

Land Situated in the State of Michigan, County of Calhoun, Township of Marshall.

PARCEL 1:
A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall Township, Calhoun
County, Michigan, described as follows:  That part of the following described premises lying in
Section 19:  Commencing where Ceresco Road intersects Section line between Sections 29
and 30, running thence North on Section line to the Territorial Road (so called) Northwest in
middle of said road about 60 rods, South to Ceresco Road, East to beginning, in Sections 19
and 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, to be taken off the East part of said description
excepting therefrom, all that part of the above lying North of a line described as:  Beginning at a
point on the East line of said Section 19, distant 1099.09 feet South of the East 1/4 post of said
Section, thence bearing North 77 degrees 50 minutes West in a straight line to the West line of
the above described parcel and the end of said line.

Parcel Number: 13-16-190-006-01

PARCEL 2:
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan; thence East 80 rods; thence North 39-1/2 rods; thence
West 80 rods; thence South to the place of beginning.

Parcel Number: 13-16-193-003-00

PARCEL 3:
A parcel of land in Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as follows: Start on the
North bank of the Kalamazoo River at a point 10 rods East from the North and South 1/4 line of
Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West; go North on West line of land of D.H. Godfrey,
(formerly) to the East and West 1/4 line of Section 19; go West to a point 80 rods East from the
West line of said Section 19; go South to the North bank of the Kalamazoo River, go Easterly
along North bank of Kalamazoo River to start. EXCEPTING the North 20 acres thereof. Also,
EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West.

Parcel Number: 13-16-193-006-00

PARCEL 4:
Part of the East 1/2 of Section 19, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, lying Southerly of Old US-12
Highway, described as beginning on the East & West 1/4 line at a point distant 165 feet East of
the North & South 1/4 line, thence South to South Section line, thence East 1742.4 feet, thence
North to old US-12 Highway right of way, thence Northwesterly along right of way to a point 165
feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence South 184.33 feet to beginning; EXCEPT
beginning in the Northeast corner of said parcel, thence Northwesterly along the Southerly
highway right of way line 1233.8 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet,
thence South 67 degrees 29 minutes East 189.99 feet, thence South 12 degrees 35 minutes
West 474.63 feet, thence South 87 degrees 01 minute East 655 feet, thence South 84 degrees
51 minutes East 534 feet, thence North 402.7 feet to beginning; ALSO EXCEPT Beginning in
the center of old US-12 Highway 165 feet Southeasterly of the North & South 1/4 line, thence
Southeasterly in highway 250.12 feet, thence South 22 degrees 31 minutes West 350 feet,
thence North 67 degrees 29 minutes West 105.66 feet, thence North to beginning.

Parcel Number: 13-16-193-009-00

PARCEL 5:
A parcel of land in Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, described as: Beginning at a
point 10 rods East of the center of Section 19, Township 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, running thence South 69.57 chains more or less to the
center of Ceresco Road, thence East along the center of said road 26.40 chains, more or less,
thence North 61.20 chains, more or less, to the Southerly line of the right of way formerly
occupied by Michigan Traction Company, thence Northwesterly along said Southerly line of the
right of way to the intersection thereof with the East and West 1/4 line of aforesaid Section 19,
thence West to the place of beginning. EXCEPTING that portion of said land in Section 19,
Town 2 South, Range 6 West.

Parcel Number: 13-16-300-006-00

PARCEL 6:
Beginning at the Northeast corner of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of Section 30,
Town 2 South, Range 6 West, thence South to the Kalamazoo River, thence Southeasterly
along said river to a point 165 feet East of the North & South 1/4 line, thence North to Section
line, thence West to place of beginning.  EXCEPT Beginning in the centerline of C Drive North
1893.5 feet East of the West Section line, thence North 501 feet, thence East 336.14 feet,
thence South 501 feet, thence West 336.14 feet.

Parcel Number: 13-16-300-018-00

PARCEL 7:
Commencing at the Northwest corner of Section 30, Town 2 South, Range 6 West, Marshall
Township, Calhoun County, Michigan, thence East 80 rods, thence South to the line of the
Michigan Central Railroad, thence along the line of said Michigan Central Railroad to the town
line between Marshall Township and Emmett Township, thence North to the place of beginning.

Parcel Number: 13-16-300-021-00

1) THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY,
TITLE COMMITMENT NO's. 131199745CML REVISION 5 WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE
OF FEBRUARY 16, 2023 AT 8:00 AM.

2) THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION DESCRIBES THE SAME PROPERTY AS INSURED IN THE
TITLE COMMITMENT AND ANY EXCEPTIONS HAVE BEEN NOTED HEREIN.

3) SAID DESCRIBED PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED WITHIN A 100-YEAR FLOOD PLAIN
ZONE PER FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP NO. 26025C0220C WITH AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF APRIL 4, 2011, FOR COMMUNITY NUMBER 260642, IN CALHOUN COUNTY,
STATE OF MICHIGAN, WHICH IS THE CURRENT FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP
FOR THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH SAID PROPERTY IS SITUATED.

4) THERE IS NO EVIDENCE OF CURRENT EARTH MOVING WORK, BUILDING
CONSTRUCTION, OR BUILDING ADDITIONS.

5) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PROPOSED CHANGES IN STREET RIGHT
OF WAY LINES, IF SUCH INFORMATION IS MADE AVAILABLE TO THE SURVEYOR
BY THE CONTROLLING JURISDICTION. EVIDENCE OF RECENT STREET OR
SIDEWALK CONSTRUCTION OR REPAIRS OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF
CONDUCTING THE FIELDWORK.

6) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF PLOTTABLE OFFSITE EASEMENTS OR
SERVITUDES, AS SHOWN ON THIS SURVEY.

7) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE OF THIS BEING USED AS A SOLID WASTE
DUMP, SUMP, OR SANITARY LANDFILL.

8) THERE IS NO OBSERVED EVIDENCE INDICATING ANY CEMETERIES ARE LOCATED
ON THE PARCEL HEREIN DESCRIBED.

9) PARCELS 16-190-006-01, 16-193-009-00, 16-193-006-00, 16-193-003-00, 16-300-021-00,
16-300-018-00 AND 16-300-006-00, COMBINED TOTAL OF 407.16 ACRES OF LAND.

(PER CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, COMMITMENT NO. 131199745CML
REVISION 2, DATED FEBRUARY 16, 2023 AT 8:00 AM)

7. Easement rights in favor of any and all utility companies, public or otherwise, over and across
the Land for the location, servicing and maintenance of facilities located on, over or under
said Land, if any.

8. Farmland and Open Space Development Rights Lien recorded on March 16, 2004 in Liber
2802, page 74. (as to Parcels 3 and 6) (BLANKET IN NATURE)

9. Farmland and Open Space Development Rights Lien recorded on March 16, 2004 in Liber
2802, page 76. (as to Parcel 7) (BLANKET IN NATURE)

10. Farmland and Open Space Development Rights Lien recorded on March 16, 2004 in Liber
2802, page 77. (as to Parcels 4 and 5) (BLANKET IN NATURE)

11. An oil and gas lease for the term therein provided with certain covenants, conditions and
provisions, together with easements, if any, as set forth therein, dated November 22, 1958,
Willard A. Shear and Bromby E. Shear, husband and wife, lessor, Lester A. Shimmel, lessee,
recorded on April 18, 1960, Liber 794, page 23. (as to Parcels 1 and 4) (BLANKET IN
NATURE)

12. An oil and gas lease for the term therein provided with certain covenants, conditions and
provisions, together with easements, if any, as set forth therein, dated July 20, 1966, Willard
Shear, a widower, lessor, Thomas B. Mask, lessee, recorded on November 2, 1966, in Liber
875, page 919. (as to Parcels 1 and 4) (BLANKET IN NATURE)

13. INTENTIONALLY DELETED

14.  INTENTIONALLY DELETED

15.  INTENTIONALLY DELETED

16. Right(s) of Way and/or Easement(s) and rights incidental thereto, as granted in a document,
granted to Michigan Bell Telephone Company, recorded in Liber 1508, page 568. (as to
Parcels 4 and 5) (AS PLOTTED)

17. Notices of Claim of Interests in Oil and Gas executed by Consumers Power Company,
recorded in Liber 1515, page 488 and in Liber 1554, page 974. (as to Parcels 6 and 7)
(BLANKET IN NATURE)

18. INTENTIONALLY DELETED

19. Easement Deed by Court Order in Settlement of Landowner Action and the terms, covenants
and conditions contained therein, recorded in Liber 3836, page 666. (as to Parcels 6 and 7)
(BLANKET IN NATURE)

20. Rights of the public to any portion of the Land lying within the bounds of 13 Mile Road (as to
Parcel 1), East Michigan Avenue (M 96) (as to Parcel 4), 12 Mile Road (as to Parcels 2 and
7), and C Drive North (as to Parcels 5 and 6).

22. Rights, if any, of the United States Government, the State of Michigan, any other
Government entity, riparian owners, the public or private persons existing in or with respect to
the present and past bed, banks, bottom land, flood plain and waters of the Kalamazoo River.

23. Grant of Rights Agreement between the Michigan Economic Developement Corporation (the
"MEDC"), whose address is 300 N Washington Square, Lansing, MI 48933, and Marshall
Area Economic Development Alliancek a Michigan non-profit corporation ("MAEDA"), whose
address is 323 West Michigan Avenue, Marshall, Michigan 49068, dated _______________,
recorded on _______________ in Liber __________, Page __________.

Page 100 of 215



City of Marshall
and 

Marshall Township
Public Hearing Notices

The City of Marshall City Council and Marshall Township Board will hold Public Hearings to hear 
public comment regarding Public Act 425 Land Transfers for the following properties:

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID#16-290-021-01 (13580 13 Mile Rd.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-021-02 (13712 13 Mile Rd.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-021-03 (13996 13 Mile Rd.)from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-201-018-00 (13820 W. Michigan Ave.) from 
Marshall Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-012-00 (13996 W. Michigan Ave.) from 
Marshall Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-015-00 (14012 W. Michigan Ave.) from 
Marshall Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-00 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-03 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-04 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-021-05 (Bentley Boulevard) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-290-021-04 (13844 13 Mile Rd.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-01 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-02 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-281-015-05 (Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-190-006-01 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-193-003-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-193-006-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-193-009-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-300-006-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-300-018-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

Page 101 of 215



• PA 425 Land Transfer of Parcel ID# 16-300-021-00 (E. Michigan Ave.) from Marshall 
Township to City of Marshall

Public hearings to hear public comment will be held at the Marshall Township Hall and the City of 
Marshall, as follows:

• The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Marshall Township on April 17, 2023 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Marshall Township Hall, located at 13551 Myron Avery Dr, Marshall, MI 
49068.

Any interested person is invited to attend the meeting to be held as noticed above.  The 
Marshall Township Hall is barrier free and accessible to those with special needs.  If you 
are unable to attend, written comments concerning the proposed amendments received 
before the close of the public hearing will also be considered. Written response can be 
sent to or hand delivered to the attention of the Marshall Township Board, Township Clerk, 
located at 13551 Myron Avery Dr, Marshall, MI 49068. Individuals with disabilities requiring 
auxiliary aids or services should contact the office of the Township Clerk at least four (4) 
days prior to the hearing, phone: 269-781-7976. 

• The regular meeting of the City of Marshall City Council on April 17, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. at 
the Marshall County Building, 315 West Green Street, Marshall, Michigan in the Board of 
Commissioners Chambers Room 3-C08.

Any interested person is invited to attend the meetings to be held as noticed above.  
Marshall City Hall is barrier free and accessible to those with special needs.  If you are 
unable to attend, written comments concerning the proposed amendments received 
before the close of the public hearing will also be considered. Written response can be 
sent to or hand delivered to the attention of the City of Marshall, City Clerk, located 323 
W. Michigan Ave., Marshall, Michigan 49068.  Please direct any questions to Derek Perry, 
269-558-0315 or dperry@cityofmarshall.com. 

The City of Marshall will provide necessary and reasonable auxiliary aids and services to 
individuals with disabilities at the hearing upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk of the 
need for the same.  Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should 
contact the office of the City Clerk at least four (4) days prior to the hearing. The City 
Clerk’s Office can be reached at phone: 269-781-5183 or in-person at the location and 
times indicated below.

Copies of the Land Transfer requests may be obtained, inspected, or reviewed in the 
Office of the Marshall City Clerk, Monday-Friday, between the hours of 8:30AM-12:00PM 
and 1:00PM- 4:00PM.  The Clerk’s Office is located on the second floor of the Marshall 
City Hall, located at 323 West Michigan Avenue, Marshall, MI 49068.

Page 102 of 215

mailto:dperry@cityofmarshall.com


 

ITEM 10.B 

 
  
TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: 421/423 MITCHELL SPECIAL LAND USE  
  
 
Josh Karaba has proposed a self-storage facility at 421 and 423 Mitchell Street.  The property is 
currently zoned Research and Technology District (I-1) which categorizes self-storage facilities 
as a Special Land Use, which requires Planning Commission review and Council approval.  The 
Planning Commission reviewed this request (administrative report attached) and the site plan 
for the project on April 12, 2023.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The addition of a self-storage facility on these two parcels will lead to a small increase in tax 
revenue. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the requested Special Land Use for the addition of a self-storage facility at 421 and 
423 Mitchell Street. 
 

Page 103 of 215



Page 104 of 215



 

ITEM 6.A 

 
  
TO: Planning Commission 
FROM: Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: April 12, 2023  
SUBJECT: SLU #23.01- 421 and 423 Mitchell Street Special Land Use  
  
 
Josh Karaba is planning to construct a self-storage facility at 421 and 423 Mitchelle Street.  Self-
storage facilities are a special land use in the I-1 zoning district.  As required, a public hearing 
notice was published in the Advisor and notices were mailed to all property owners within 300' 
of the site.  A site plan for the project is also on this agenda and is included in the packet.  
 
The following standards are to be used in considering whether to approve the special land use 
request: 
 
A.The proposed use shall be in accordance with the City Master Plan and the intent and 
purpose of this subchapter  
The proposed use meets the intent of the subchapter and the city master plan. 
 
B. A documented and immediate need exists for the proposed use within the community. 
While there are a few self-storage facilities in the surrounding townships, there is still a demand  
 
C. The use is compatible with adjacent uses and the existing or intended character of the 
surrounding neighborhood, and will not have an adverse impact upon or interfere with 
the development, use or enjoyment of adjacent properties, or the orderly development of 
the neighborhood. 
The use is compatible with the character of the neighborhood and will improve the appearance 
of the two parcels.  No adverse impact on the enjoyment of neighboring parcels or development 
of the neighborhood is expected. 
 
D. The proposed use shall be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to 
be compatible with the use of adjacent lands. 
The proposed building appears to be compatible with the building to the south and will be an 
improvement over the current structures on the site. 
 
E. The proposed use shall be compatible with the natural environment. 
There is no expectation that there will be a negative impact on the environment.  
 
F. The proposed use shall be adequately served by essential public facilities and 
services, such as highways, streets, police and fire protection, drainage structures, 
refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities and schools. 
There is no expectation that the use will have an impact on the items in this section.  In fact, we 

Page 105 of 215



expect the use to reduce the impact on these items. 
 
G. The proposed use shall not involve activities, processes, materials and equipment or 
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to public health, safety and welfare by 
reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or unreasonable or 
offensive odors.  
The City Development Review Team found that there would be no detriment to public health, 
safety, or welfare.  There is no expectation that the site will cause unreasonable traffic. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
A small increase in taxes is estimated from the redevelopment of these parcels. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the Special Land Use for a self-storage facility at 421 and 423 
Mitchell Street. 
 

Page 106 of 215



Page 107 of 215



Page 108 of 215



Page 109 of 215



Page 110 of 215



Page 111 of 215



Page 112 of 215



Page 113 of 215



Page 114 of 215



 

ITEM: 12.A 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 
  

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: SITE PLAN REVIEW CONTRACT FOR BLUEOVAL BATTERY PARK 

PROJECT  
  
 
Due to the size and complexity of the proposed Blue Oval Battery Project, City staff determined 
that additional assistance from a planning/engineering consultant was necessary to ensure our 
site plan review process is effective.  Staff requested a proposal from Progressive AE, who is a 
full service planning/engineering firm based in Grand Rapids.  Progressive AE was chosen due 
to their familiarity with the I-3 Zoning Ordinance (which they helped draft) and their capability to 
provide the expedited site plan review services needed for this project.   
 
The decision was made to sole source this contract due to the lack of time to complete an RFP 
process and more importantly, the funds for this service are not coming from the city.  The 
MEDC has committed to reimbursing the city for site plan review expenses for the Ford project.   
 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
A budget amendment will be needed to account for the additional expense related to site plan 
review. However, the MEDC has committed to covering site plan review and other city expenses 
for the BlueOval Battery Park project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the contract for site plan review services with Progressive AE for the BlueOval Battery 
Project in the amount up to $40,000 for the first phase and up to $15,000 for any future 
changes/phases. 
 

Page 115 of 215



 

Progressive AE | 1811 4 Mile Road NE | Grand Rapids, MI 49525 | 616.361.2664 | progressiveae.com 
 

 
January 20, 2023 
 
Eric Zuzga, ICMA-CM, EDFP, Director of Community Services 
City of Marshall 
323 West Michigan Avenue  
Marshall, MI 49068 
 
 
Re:  Updated Proposal for Professional Engineering Services for Site Plan Review 
 
Dear Mr. Zuzga, 
 
Progressive AE is pleased to present this proposal for engineering services for Site Plan Review for the 
City of Marshall. Following is our understanding of the project, our scope of services, proposed schedule 
and compensation for your consideration. 
 
UNDERSTANDING OF PROJECT  
We understand that a significant manufacturing company may establish a new facility in the City of Marshall. 
The scale of the facility is significant and may include an approximate 3,500’x90’ building footprint with 

multiple buildings and parking lots on the 800-acre site. A phased site plan approach is likely, with changes 
as they move forward in construction to move the process forward rapidly. The site plan will be approved 
administratively with city staff and Progressive AE staff responsible for review and approval.  We will need 
to be responsive (10-14 days for review and approval).  The site will be graded by the State prior to any 
company beginning their process. Stormwater planning is underway and will be completed by the State prior 
to a manufacturing company taking over the site.  Progressive AE will need to review the stormwater work 
and ensure it meets Marshall standards. The buffer area along Michigan Avenue will be completed by the 
State and operated by local entity (TBD). 
 
The City will need to provide site plan review services to ensure that what is planned, approved and built 
meets the City’s standards. The City is accordingly seeking professional site plan review services to ensure 
that this review work is performed accurately and timely on this important regional investment. 
 
SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES 
Based upon the above project understanding, we will provide the following scope of services: 

• Site Plan Review services including: 
o Attendance at pre-submittal meetings with the City and the developer. 
o Organization and record management of submittals made by the developer. 
o Completion of Site Plan Reviews. 
o Attendance at relevant Planning Commission and City Council meetings. 

 
All services to be completed by an experienced, licensed Professional Engineer. Our staff has extensive 
experience in completing site plan reviews with several communities.   
 
SCHEDULE 
It is anticipated that the entirety of the project will be built over a 4-year period. Planning for the entire project 
will likely happen in the first year, along with design of the first 2-year phase of the project.  A second 2-
year phase could also happen with detailed design for additional expansion. The first year will therefore 
include a significant amount of review time; subsequent years will include smaller scale projects and thus 
smaller involvement in site plan review. 
 
We are familiar with the quick turnaround needed for site plan reviews due to Planning Commission 
submittal timelines and will work with the City in completing reviews according to the needed schedule.   
  

Page 116 of 215



  Site Plan Review Proposal
  Page 2 

Progressive AE | 1811 4 Mile Road NE | Grand Rapids, MI 49525 | 616.361.2664 | progressiveae.com 
 

PROFESSIONAL COMPENSATION  
Based upon the above identified scope of services for the planning and first phase of the project Progressive 
AE proposes compensation for professional services on an hourly basis towards an estimated amount of 
$40,000 (forty thousand dollars) including reimbursable expenses to be invoiced according to the attached 
Schedule of Invoice Rates.  
 
For subsequent phases Progressive AE proposes compensation on an hourly basis towards an estimated 
amount of $15,000 (fifteen thousand dollars) annually, including reimbursable expenses to be invoiced 
according to the attached Schedule of Invoice Rates. 
 
Progressive AE has prepared this proposal for City of Marshall and we request that it be treated as 
confidential and not copied or distributed for any reason other than evaluation for hire. 
 
The terms of this proposal defining project understanding, scope, schedule, and professional compensation 
are incorporated into the Standard Agreement Provisions for Professional Services which are attached. 
The terms and conditions as identified in the Standard Agreement Provisions will be valid unless 
superseded by an AIA Standard Form of Agreement. If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign 
below and return a copy of the signed proposal. Your signature will be our authorization to begin the work 
and place the project in the firm’s schedule. If you do not sign and return this proposal, and after receipt of 
this proposal you request or accept services from Progressive AE in connection with this or any other 
engagement, your request or acceptance of such services will be deemed to be an acquiescence or 
agreement with the terms provided in this proposal. 
 
We look forward to working on this project with you and your team. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
       
 
 
Michael J. Oezer PE Timothy M. Bradshaw 
Senior Municipal Engineer Municipal Practice Leader 
 
 
 
Accepted By: __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Printed Name: ________________________________ Date: ____________________________ 
 
CITY OF MARSHALL  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
TMB/rmf 
P:\83260007\01 ADMIN\A1 CONTRACTS\a Working Proposals\2023 1 20 Site Plan Review Proposal.docx 

Page 117 of 215



 

ITEM: 12.B 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 
  

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Eric Zuzga, Director of Community Services 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: SCHEDULE REZONING PUBLIC HEARING FOR 425 PARCELS 

FROM MARSHALL TOWNSHIP  
  
 
The City Council has approved a number of land transfer agreements over the last three months 
with Marshall Township for the proposed BlueOval Battery Project.  Staff have worked with 
Ford, MEDC, and MAEDA to identify the amount of land that will be needed for the project, 
recently completing property combination and splits in order to create the new Ford parcel.  In 
order to complete the zoning process for this new process, the Joint Planning Commission will 
hold a public hearing on April 25, 2023 to consider the zoning of parcel 53-281-021-00, 13700 
West Michigan Avenue, to Industrial and Manufacturing Complex (I-3) Zoning District.   
 
To complete the zoning process, the City Council needs to hold a public hearing to consider the 
request. A proposed ordinance that would need to be approved to complete the zoning 
designation is attached to this report. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Set a public hearing for May 1, 2023 at 7:00 PM to consider zoning designation of Industrial and 
Manufacturing Complex (I-3) for parcel 53-281-021-00, 13700 West Michigan Avenue. 
 

Page 118 of 215



CITY OF MARSHALL
PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE

The Marshall City Council will be holding a public hearing on Monday, May 1, 2023 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Board of Commission Chambers of the Marshall County Building, 315 W Green St, Marshall, MI 
49068.  The purpose of the meeting will be to consider the following items:

• Public Hearing for Rezoning Application RZ 23.01 for the rezoning of 13700 W Michigan Ave, 
parcel 53-281-021-00, which contains parcels that were transferred under a PA 425 
agreement with Marshall Township from Township Zoning to Industrial and Manufacturing 
Complex (I-3) 

The following parcels or portions of parcels that are included in the above map are included in the 
rezoning request: 

16-201-021-00 16-290-006-00 16-291-009-00 16-201-015-00 16-282-006-00
16-281-021-00 16-290-009-00 16-291-015-00 16-282-003-00 16-290-024-00
16-291-012-00 16-290-018-00 16-290-021-01 16-290-021-02 16-290-021-03
16-290-021-04 16-290-021-05 16-281-015-01 16-281-015-02 16-281-015-05

Any property owner or their representative, or any interested person is invited to attend the meeting to 
be held as noticed above.  Those wishing to comment may do so in person at the meeting or may send 
written comments to the attention of Eric Zuzga, City of Marshall, 323 W. Michigan Ave., Marshall, 
Michigan 49068. 

The City of Marshall will provide necessary and reasonable auxiliary aids and services to individuals with 
disabilities at the hearing upon reasonable notice to the City Clerk of the need for the same.  Individuals 

Page 119 of 215



with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the office of the City Clerk at least 
four (4) days prior to the hearing. The City Clerk’s Office can be reached at phone: 269-781-5183 or in-
person at the location and times indicated below.

A copy of the ordinance may be obtained, inspected, or reviewed in the Office of the Clerk, Monday-
Friday, between the hours of 8:30AM-12:00PM and 1:00PM- 4:00PM.  The Clerk’s Office is located at 
City Hall, 323 West Michigan Avenue, Marshall, MI 49068.  The Clerk’s Office can be reached at 269-
781-5183.

Page 120 of 215



M
ID

W
E
S
T
E
R
N

&
2
N
S
8
/
T
IN

*
38

15
 P

la
za

 D
riv

e 
 A

nn
 A

rb
or

, M
ic

hi
ga

n 
48

10
8

(7
34

) 9
95

-0
20

0 
• 

w
w

w
.m

id
w

es
te

rn
co

ns
ul

tin
g.

co
m

La
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t •
 L

an
d 

Su
rv

ey
 •

 In
st

itu
tio

na
l •

 M
un

ic
ip

al
W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 •

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

• 
La

nd
fil

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Page 121 of 215



1

CITY OF MARSHALL
ORDINANCE #2023-08

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF MARSHALL SO
AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING OF A PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY, PARCEL # 53-281-

021-00, FROM TOWNSHIP ZONING TO INDUSTRIAL AND MANUFACTURING 
COMPLEX (I-3).

THE CITY OF MARSHALL, MICHIGAN ORDAINS:

Section 1. Purpose.  The purpose of the Zoning Ordinance amendment is to the 
promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the residents of the City of 
Marshall by regulating the land use for safe and efficient use of lands to meet the needs 
of the state’s residents for industry, trade, service, and other uses of land and to reduce 
hazards to life and property. 

Section 2. Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance.  Pursuant to the authority granted in 
Section 7.1 of the Marshall City Code, the Zoning Map of the City of Marshall is hereby 
amended so as to change the zoning district for the below described properties from 
Township Zoning to Industrial and Manufacturing Complex (I-3).

TAX PARCEL # (53-281-021-00) Legal Description

Page 122 of 215



2

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTIONS 20, 28, & 29, T2S, R6W,
MARSHALL TOWNSHIP, CALHOUN COUNTY, MICHIGAN
BEGINNING at the W 1 / 4 corner of Section 29, T2S, R6W, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan, thence S 89°58' 17" E 33.00 feet along the E-W 1 / 4 line of 
said Section 29 to the East right-of-way line of 13 Mile Road; thence N 00°22'04" E 
2157 .32 feet along said East right-of-way; thence S 89°55' 40" E 3122.60 feet;
thence N 00°25'58" E 695.21 feet; thence S 68°23'07" E 3245.71 feet; thence S 
68°35'27" E 2960.81 feet; thence S 01°39'06" W 699.69 feet; thence N 88°20'54" W 
954.00 feet along the E-W 1 / 4 line of Section 28, T2S, R6W, Marshall Township, 
Calhoun County, Michigan & the centerline of C Drive North (66.00 feet wide) to the 
Center of said Section 28; thence S 00°08'50" E 194 7.49 feet along the N-S 1 / 4 line of 
said Section 28; thence N 71°18'28" W 397.60 feet; thence N 90°00'00" W 6312.27 
feet; thence N 76°09' 31" W 1337. 71 feet; thence N 00°16'51" E 1599.81 feet along 
the West line of said Section 29 to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Being a part Sections 20, 28 & 29, T2S, R6W, Marshall Township, Calhoun County, 
Michigan and containing 731 .40 acres of land, more or less. Being subject to the rights of 
the public over that portion of land as occupied by C Drive North (66.00 feet wide). Being 
subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any.

Section 3. Appropriation.  The City Council appropriates $40,000 for site plan review 
services and $250,000 for building inspection services for the development of the 
proposed industrial project on the properties identified and described under this 
ordinance. 

Section 4. Severability.  It is the legislative intent of the City by adopting this Ordinance 
that all provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to protect the public health, safety 
and general welfare of the residents of the City and all other persons affected by this 
Ordinance.  Consequently, should any provision of this Ordinance be held to be 
unconstitutional, invalid or of no effect, such holding shall not be construed as affecting 
the validity of any of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance or Zoning Code, it being 
the intent of the City Council that this Ordinance shall stand and remain in effect, 
notwithstanding the invalidity of any provision hereof. If any section, paragraph, clause, 
phrase or part of this Ordinance is held invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction or 
any agency, department or commission empowered by statute for such purposes, such 
decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions of this Ordinance, and the 
application of those provisions to any person or circumstance shall not be affected 
thereby.

Section 5. Code Edits.  The editors of the Marshall City Code are hereby authorized, 
subject to approval of the City Manager, or designee, to update and revise code section 
numbers to effectuate the provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 6. Section Headings.  The section headings used in this ordinance are for 
convenience only and are not a part of this Ordinance.

Page 123 of 215



3

Section 7. Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published in the Marshall Chronicle, a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Marshall qualified under state law to 
publish legal notices, within ten (10) days after its adoption. This Ordinance shall be 
recorded in the Ordinance Book and such recording shall be authenticated by the 
signature of the Mayor and the City Clerk.

Section 8. Effective.  This Ordinance be effective publication upon the expiration of 7 
days after publication.

Introduced by the Marshall City Council this ___ day of _________, 2023.

Adopted by the Marshall City Council this _____ day of __________, _____.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Approved:

James Schwartz, Mayor

Motion by
Second by

Page 124 of 215



4

STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF CALHOUN

I, Michelle Eubank, Marshall City Clerk, certify this is Ordinance #_____ adopted by the 
Marshall City Council at a meeting held the _____ day of __________, 2023, a meeting held 
according to the Open Meetings Act, Public Act No.  267 of 1976, as amended.  I further 
certify Ordinance # 2023 - ____ was published in the Marshall Ad-Visor, a newspaper of 
general circulation in the City of Marshall, the _____ day of __________, 2023, subsequent 
to its adoption.

Michelle Eubank, City Clerk

Introduced:
Public Hearing:
Adopted:
Published:
Effective:

 

Page 125 of 215



 

ITEM: 12.C 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 
  

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 

Martin Erskine, Fire Chief 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: COMMUNITY RISK ASSESSMENT & REDUCTION GRANT 

APPLICATION  
  
 
The Fire Department is requesting authorization to submit a grant to conduct a Community Risk 
Assessment (CRA) and Community Risk Reduction (CRR) Plan to the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). FEMA has opened the Fire Prevention and Safety Grant to allow 
for requests for CRA & CRR programs. CRA/CRR plans are a vital part of the accreditation 
process, but more importantly, will help us allocate our resources and efforts to the most critical 
risk we have.  
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The total cost for a complete CRA/CRR plan by a professional outside organization is estimated 
at $50,000. If we receive this grant, we would be responsible for a 10% match ($5,000). If 
successful, the local match will be provided using budgeted funds in the Fire Department 
Operating Budget.    
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve submittal of the grant to FEMA for a Community Risk Assessment (CRA) and Community 
Risk Reduction (CRR) Plan and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sign and submit the 
necessary documents.  
 

Page 126 of 215



Page 127 of 215



Page 128 of 215



Page 129 of 215



Page 130 of 215



Page 131 of 215



Page 132 of 215



Page 133 of 215



Page 134 of 215



Page 135 of 215



Page 136 of 215



Page 137 of 215



Page 138 of 215



1

FP&S FY22
Narrative Template

Community Description—

The Marshall Fire Department (MFD) is a municipal all hazard department staffed with 11 full 
time personnel and supplemented by up to 15 paid-on-call staff. We are surrounded by three 
townships that have no full-time staff-- they are all paid-on-call. We respond from a single 
station with a fleet of two engines, one aerial, one brush/quick attack and three support 
vehicles. We respond to an average of 880 fire/EMS and rescue calls annually, with 67% of the 
incidents being EMS calls. In the past ten years the call volume handled by the MFD has 
doubled due to development in the city.

The MFD is heavily integrated into a county-wide Box Alarm system for any working 
fire/incident in Calhoun County. Additionally, we are part of Michigan MABAS 3505. We have 
mutual aid agreements with 23 area fire departments. We respond to, or receive, automatic 
and mutual aid an average of 35 times annually.

We are located in a very diverse area in the lower, central portion of lower Michigan. The City 
of Marshall (population 7,094 permanent residents and a daytime population of over 20,000) 
ranges from densely packed to a 189 acre protected nature preserve. The Marshall area is some 
of the last open area between Detroit and Chicago and is experiencing a high rate of 
development. 

Throughout the year MFD firefighters are involved in various fire prevention activities including 
industrial and commercial fire inspections; fire safety programs for school children, senior 
citizens and civic organizations; and we have a city-wide residential smoke detector program 
that provides free smoke detectors and batteries.

We recently implemented an aggressive code inspection program due to the addition of three 
personnel from SAFER Grant. We are also performing pre-fire planning with our operation 
personnel.

1) Please explain the applicant’s need for financial assistance to carry out the proposed 
project(s). Provide detail about the applicant’s total operating budget, including a high-
level breakdown of the budget. Describe the applicant’s inability to address financial 
needs without federal assistance. Discuss other actions the applicant has taken to meet 
their needs. Include information on efforts to obtain funding elsewhere and how similar 
projects have been funded in the past. 

The MFD is not in a position to spare $50,000 from its budget in order to fund this risk assessment 
initiative. In the last year the department had to cut operating expenses and eliminate parts of 

Page 139 of 215



2

personnel costs to offset budget short falls brought on by COVID. As a consequence, and due to 
drastically increased costs of operations our budget has downsized to basically a maintenance 
mode with no funds for special projects or capital improvements.

The current MFD operating budget and the previous two years budgets average $1,371,990 
with an average of 74% going for salaries and personnel expenses. This leaves an average of 
only $356,717 to cover all other operational expenses including apparatus maintenance, 
equipment maintenance, legal and professional fees, training, PPE, building and grounds, etc. 

COVID 19 has taken a massive toll on the City of Marshall, resulting in many shuttered 
businesses and layoffs that the community has not yet recovered from. The dramatic increase 
in unemployed people due to COVID left many people in the community unable to pay their 
taxes and placed the City of Marshall into a budget shortfall situation that were felt by all city 
departments and in particular the MFD. This factor along with the Headley Amendment which 
restricts taxable property value increases to the lesser of inflation or 5% has increased our 
budget woes.  This means that even though the value of a particular piece of property increases 
at the rate of inflation, the taxes levied for the entire community are rolled back. To help 
combat these factors the City implanted a millage increase in 2014 which allowed for revenues 
to slowly meet the City’s budget. This worked fine until the unanticipated budget crash brought 
on by COVID.

Because the City implemented a millage increase on 2014 it is reluctant to implement another 
increase the rate again at this time.  The bottom line is that there is no possibility in the 
foreseeable future of the MFD receiving any additional funding from the City in order to fund 
this risk assessment project. 

The MFD budget is entirely raised from property taxes other than a SAFER grant the MFD 
received in 2021 for three firefighter positions. The FP&S Grant program is the only opportunity 
we have to fund this Risk Assessment/Standards of Cover project.

2) Commitment to Mitigation: Fire Department applicants that can demonstrate their 
commitment and proactive posture to reducing fire risk will receive higher 
consideration. Applicants must explain their code adoption and enforcement (to include 
Wildland Urban Interface and commercial/residential sprinkler code adoption and 
enforcement) and mitigation strategies (including whether or not the jurisdiction has a 
FEMA-approved mitigation strategy).

MFD firefighters are involved in various fire prevention activities including industrial and 
commercial fire inspections and fire safety education at public and private events and 
institutions. Hazard mitigation strategies seek to control hazards in order to reduce risks from 
hazardous situations such as uncontrolled or preventable fires. This falls within the realm of the 
mitigation activity of Public Education & Awareness Actions. These actions inform and educate 
citizens, elected officials, and property owners about potential risks from hazards and potential 
ways to mitigate them. The purpose of this investment justification is an element of this 

Page 140 of 215



3

mitigation strategy in that it seeks to identify where City of Marshall residents are most at risk 
from the threats of fire and what actions can be taken either through code adoption and 
enforcement and/or public education efforts.

We have also implemented an aggressive code inspection program due to the addition of three 
personnel from SAFER Grant. We are also performing pre-fire planning with our operation 
personnel.

3) Please provide a brief synopsis of the proposed project and then identify the specific 
goals and objectives of your project. 

This project seeks $50,000 in funding to contact the services of a professional firm to develop a 
comprehensive community risk assessment of the City of Marshall and Standards of Cover for 
the MFD.

The goals for this initiative include:

1) Identify at risk populations in the City of Marshall
2) Identify deficiencies the MFD has in addressing the particular risks of the Marshall 

community
3) Determine measures the MFD and the community can take to manage community risks
4) Develop Standards of Cover for the MFD

The risk management firm contracted for this project will have one year to complete its 
research and analysis and provide as a deliverable a written report with recommendations.

With a small organization that is preparing for major growth, if we do not identify our risk and 
come up with a plan to reduce risk, we could be overwhelmed quickly. We are an organization 
that wants to put emphasis on being proactive and reducing risk.

4) Please explain your experience and ability in developing and conducting past fire and 
prevention safety projects. Additionally, please demonstrate the experience and 
expertise you have in managing the type of project you are proposing. 

Our department is involved in various fire prevention activities including industrial and 
commercial fire inspections and fire safety education at public and private events and 
institutions. We also recently implemented an aggressive code inspection program due to the 
addition of three personnel from SAFER Grant. We are also performing pre-fire planning with 
our operation personnel.

Page 141 of 215



4

5) Vulnerability Statement: (The assessment of fire risk is essential in the development of 
an effective project goal, as well as meeting FEMA’s goal to reduce risk by conducting a 
risk assessment as a basis for action. Vulnerability is a “weak link,” demonstrating high-
risk behavior, living conditions, or any type of high-risk situation. The Vulnerability 
Statement should include a description of the steps taken to determine the vulnerability 
and identify the target audience. The methodology for determination of vulnerability 
(i.e., how the vulnerability was found) should be discussed in-depth in the application’s 
Narrative Statement.
Fire Department applicants: note that 5% of the available 20% for this narrative element 
will be provided to those applicants that can demonstrate their commitment and 
proactive posture to reducing fire risk. Applicants must explain their code adoption and 
enforcement (to include Wildland Urban Interface and commercial/residential sprinkler 
code adoption and enforcement) and mitigation strategies (including whether or not the 
jurisdiction has a FEMA-approved mitigation strategy) to receive the full 20%. Also, note 
that departments can demonstrate their commitment to reducing fire risk by applying 
to implement fire mitigation strategies (code adoption and enforcement) via this 
application.
The specific vulnerability that will be addressed with the proposed project can be 
established through a formal or informal risk assessment. FEMA encourages the use of 
local statistics, rather than national statistics, when discussing the vulnerability.
In a clear, to-the-point statement, the applicant should summarize the vulnerability the 
project will address, including who is at risk, what the risks are, where the risks are, and 
how the risks can be prevented, reduced, or mitigated.
For the purpose of the FY 2019 FP&S NOFO, formal risk assessments consist of the use 
of software programs or recognized expert analysis that assess risk trends.
Informal risk assessments could include an in-house review of available data (e.g., 
National Fire Incident Reporting System [NFIRS]) to determine fire loss, burn injuries or 
loss of life over a period of time, and the factors that are the cause and origin for each 
occurrence, including a lack of adoption and enforcement of certain codes. 

Development of a vulnerability statement is impractical at this time because the MFD is not 
aware of what precisely the vulnerabilities are in the City of Marshall. This investment 
justification has the intent of conducting a risk assessment that will determine what 
vulnerabilities exist in the City of Marshall. There has not ever been any form of vulnerability 
assessment conducted in the city. MFD officials have some assumptions about what our 
community risks and capability gaps might be, but it is important for us to gain clarification in 
order to develop the appropriate strategies for addressing them.

The Community risk assessment process is a process to identify and prioritize local risks, 
followed by the integrated and strategic investment of resources to reduce their occurrence 

Page 142 of 215



5

and impact. The entire risk assessment and risk management process includes the following six 
steps:

1. Step 1: Identify Risks.
2. Step 2: Prioritize Risks.
3. Step 3: Develop Strategies & Tactics to Mitigate Risks.
4. Step 4: Prepare the CRR (Community Risk Reduction) Plan.
5. Step 5: Implement the CRR Plan.
6. Step 6: Monitor, Evaluate, and Modify the CRR Plan.

The MFD has no expertise in this area and needs outside assistance in conducting the risk 
assessment and developing Standards of Cover. Development of a vulnerability statement(s) is 
a part of the risk assessment process. NFIRS data and other historical incident data maintained 
by the MFD will be used as part of this process.

6) Applicants must describe in detail not only the project components but also how the 
proposed project addresses the identified capability gap, due to financial need and/or 
the vulnerabilities identified in vulnerability statement. The following information 
should be included:

a. Project Components
b. Detailed description of how the proposed project components fill the identified 

capability gap.
c. If working with other organizations, identify each organization and the roles they 

will fill in the successful completion of the proposed project. 

As stated previously, this application is for a Risk Assessment/Standards of Cover study to 
determine what the community of Marshall’s vulnerabilities are, and from that determine what 
is needed in order to address the needs and capability gaps that exist.

This is the first step in addressing vulnerabilities and we are seeking $50,000 in funding to have 
third party, professional organization that can do an objective analysis in conducting the Risk 
Assessment. Typically when a thorough Risk Assessment/Standards of Cover analysis is 
conducted it will include numerous agencies and officials outside of the fire department. For 
the MFD this will include but not be limited to City of Marshal city officials, other public safety 
entities and city departments, civic organizations, neighboring mutual aid departments and 
possibly state and federal officials. Eligible participants in the process will be determined by and 
recommended by the vendor chosen for the project.

Page 143 of 215



6

7) Implementation Plan: Each project proposal should include details on the 
implementation plan which discusses the proposed project’s goals and objectives. 

a. Goals and Objectives
b. Details regarding the methods and specific steps that will be used to achieve the 

goals and objectives
c. Timelines outlining the chronological project steps
d. Where applicable, examples of marketing efforts to promote the project, who 

will deliver the project, and the manner in which materials or deliverables will be 
distributed

e. Requests for props, include specific goals, measurable results, and details on the 
frequency for which the prop will be utilized as part of the implementation plan. 
Applicants should include information describing the efforts that will be used to 
reach the high-risk audience and/or the number of people reached through the 
proposed project. 

f. For applicants proposing a complex project that may require a 24-month period 
of performance, please include significant justification and details in the 
implementation plan that justify the applicant’s need for a Period of 
Performance of more than 12 months. 

The goals for this initiative are to engage the services of a risk management professional to:

1) Identify at risk populations in the City of Marshall
2) Identify deficiencies the MFD has in addressing the particular risks of the Marshall 

community
3) Determine measures the MFD and the community can take to manage community risks
4) Develop Standards of Cover for the MFD

To accomplish this, the MFD will:

1) Within 30 days of award notification develop a scope of work and RFP for the project
2) In no more than 30 days of award notification release the scope of work and RFP for the 

project to appropriate vendors
3) 60 days from award notification select a vendor and provide them a contract for 

services
4) Once  the vendor is approved the MFD will work with the vendor to appoint appropriate 

people and organization representatives to facilitate the process
5) Within one year of award notification the MFD and City of Marshall will receive the 

completed Risk Management/Standards of Cover document
6) Implement actions to address risks and capability gaps identified in the Risk 

Assessment/Standards of Cover document

Page 144 of 215



7

5) Evaluation Plan: Projects should include a plan for evaluation of effectiveness and 
identify measurable goals. Applicants seeking to carry out awareness and educational 
projects, for example, should identify how they intend to determine that there has been 
an increase in knowledge about fire hazards, or measure a change in the safety 
behaviors of the audience. Applicants should demonstrate how they will measure risk at 
the outset of the project in comparison to how much the risk decreased after the 
project is finished. There are various ways to measure the knowledge gained about fire 
hazards, including the use of surveys, pre- and post-tests, or documented observations. 
Applicants are encouraged to attend training on evaluation methods, such as the 
National Fire Academy’s “Demonstrating Your Fire Prevention Program’s Worth.” 

Evaluation of the success of this investment justification will be when the MFD receives the 
final Risk Assessment/Standards of Cover document from the vendor chosen to guide the 
process. The other measure of success will be Further success will be when the MFD and City of 
Marshall implement measures to address the risks and capability gaps identified in the study.

6) Cost Benefit: Projects will be evaluated and scored by the Peer Review Panelists based 
on how well the applicant addresses the fire prevention needs of the department or 
organization in an economic and efficient manner. The applicant should show how it will 
maximize the level of funding that goes directly into the delivery of the project. The 
costs associated with the project also must be reasonable for the target audience that 
will be reached, and a description should be included of how the anticipated project 
benefit(s) (quantified if possible) outweighs the cost(s) of the requested item(s). The 
application should provide justification for all costs included in the project in order to 
assist the Technical Evaluation Panel with their review. 

The outcome of this project will be a report from the vendor selected that documents the risks 
incumbent to the City of Marshall and also the Standards of Cover for the Marshal Fire 
Department. The ultimate outcome from the fact finding process will be identification of 
present risks and capability gaps and the measures that can be taken to reduce or eliminate 
them. /reduction of risks in the City of Marshal and improvements in capabilities are best 
evaluated in terms of lives and property saved. 

 From a purely financial perspective, though morally the value of a life cannot be measured in 
financial terms; the CDC, DOT and DHS are using a $10 million statistical value of life in their 
planning. Hence, at $50,000 for this project the cost is miniscule in relation to the value of any 
life saved as a result of the risk management measures implemented as an outgrowth of this 
project. Also consider that with an average house value of $148,800 in the City of Marshall, any 
resultant action taken to address risks in the City that results in a single home being saved from 

Page 145 of 215



8

loss to fire will pay for the investment. Records show that we respond to an average of 10 
structural fires annually the City of Marshall, most of which are residential structures.

Considering the economics of this project, at $50,000 in costs this comes to only $7 per 
resident. Another factor to consider is the costs of firefighter injuries. According to the 2019 
National Institute of Standards and Technology Technical Note 2078 “The Economics of 
Firefighter Injuries in the United States” an NFPA study states that firefighter injuries result in a 
loss equivalent to $197,860 per fire department per year, $5,412 per firefighter per year, or 
$170 per call per year. The average lost per injury is more than $95,000. Taking all of these 
statistics into consideration, every angle that this project is viewed from lends cost effective 
credibility to this project if risks to firefighters are identified and corrective actions are taken. 
Additional benefits from injury avoidance are maintaining productive firefighters, prevention of 
disruption to family life due to injuries, and elimination of loss payees on workman’s 
compensation insurance.

7) Sustainability: Is it your organization's intent to deliver this program after the grant 
performance period? If so, how will the overall activity be sustained and what are the 
long-term benefits? Examples of sustainable projects can be illustrated through the 
long-term benefits derived from the delivery of the project, the presence of non-federal 
partners likely to continue the effort, or the demonstrated long-term commitment of 
the applicant.

The conclusion of this project will bring a written document in the form of a Risk 
Assessment/Standards of Cover document prepared by a firm that specializes in the research 
and development of this guidance. This will actually represent the beginning of the outcome as 
the MFD and the City of Marshall will use the findings and recommendations for guidance and 
use of its resources to in address the risks and capability gaps revealed in the document. 

Page 146 of 215



April 16th, 2023

Marshall City Council
323 W Michigan Avenue
Marshall, MI 49068

City Council,

I am writing today to voice my support for the grant writing effort to fund a
Community Risk Assessment (CRA). A CRA is the first step in a multi pronged
effort to help Emergency Services make the community safer. Community Risk
Reduction allows the fire department to identify and prioritize local risks,
followed by strategic investment in resources to reduce their occurrence and
impact. This concept is not new and has been used by fire service for over a
half century.

If you can think back to the oil spill of 2010, how many residents knew there
was a high volume transmission line running through Marshall? Would it be
important to know there is more than just one? Or, think of the recent train
derailments across the country, what goes down our tracks? We have
countless hazards from the historic nature of our city to pipelines, railways,
highway transport, air travel, etc. It is important to identify risk and objectively
determine what resources are needed to proactively prevent or mitigate the
impact of an emergency.

Community Risk Reduction is becoming the Gold Standard for Fire
Departments today. By utilizing an outside source we can get an independent
assessment of our community and feel certain all stakeholders are heard.
Once completed our CRA will be continually updated to keep Marshall
prepared for any current or new hazards.

Thank you for your consideration,

Bradley Hawley

Page 147 of 215



 

ITEM: 12.D 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 
  

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: P.A. 116 PROGRAM TERMINATION- PROPERTY OWNER REQUEST  
  
 
The City of Marshall received a request from the Marshall Area Economic Development Alliance 
(MAEDA) to have parcel 13-16-290-018-00 released from Farmland Development Rights 
Agreement #13-28643-123157, which was executed in accordance with the provisions of P.A. 
116 of 1974 by the previous property owner. 
 
As part of the termination request, the local unit of government needs to review and either 
approve or deny the request of the property owner (MAEDA). As the parcel is within the 
BlueOval project area, we are recommending approval of the request and Resolution #2023-14 
has been prepared for your consideration. 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution #2023-14 and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sign and submit 
the necessary documents. 
 

Page 148 of 215



CITY OF MARSHALL, MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-14

 
A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE TERMINATION OF FARMLAND DEVELOMENT 

RIGHTS AGREEMENT #13-28643-123157

Minutes of a regular meeting of the Council of the City of Marshall, held on April 17, 
2023 at 7:00 PM.

PRESENT:

ABSENT:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by ___________________, and 
supported by _____________________.

WHEREAS, on April 5, 2023, the City of Marshall received a request from the Marshall 
Area Economic Development Alliance (MAEDA) to have parcel 13-16-290-018-00 
released from Farmland Development Rights Agreement #13-28643-123157 which was 
executed in accordance with the provisions of P.A. 116 of 1974; and

WHEREAS, the farmland is to be owned, operated and maintained by an organization 
exempt from taxation under section 501(c)(3) of the internal revenue code of 1986, 26 
U.S.C. 501, and the relinquishment will be beneficial to the local community; and

WHEREAS, the Calhoun County Planning and Economic Development Department and 
the Calhoun County Conservation District were notified as part of the application; and

WHEREAS, the subject parcel is part of the Mega Site and the BlueOval Battery Park 
project site and has been transferred to the City of Marshall pursuant to P.A. 425 of 
1984; and

WHEREAS, the State of Michigan has appropriated $299,700,000 pursuant to P.A. 5 of 
2023 for site development declaring it a public purpose to serve the health, safety, and 
general welfare of the State; and

WHEREAS, the relinquishment of the Agreement #13-28643-123157 has minimal 
impact on agriculture in the surrounding areas as adjoining parcels were not in the P.A. 
116 of 1974 program and/or were zoned industrial; and

WHEREAS, the property is unique in the State of Michigan as recognized by the Mega 
site designation and investment by the State of Michigan and no reasonable or prudent 
site alternative exists; and

WHEREAS, the site required infrastructure improvements will not be borne by the City 
of Marshall, but instead funded by the State of Michigan as provided by P.A. 5 of 2023; 
and

Page 149 of 215



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MARSHALL hereby determines that the requested relinquishment is in the public interest 
and meets the conditions of termination as required under P.A. 116 of 1974 and herby 
approves the Application for Termination of a Farmland Development Rights Agreement.

Resolution declared adopted this 17th day or April 2023.

__________________________
Michell Eubank, City Clerk

I, Michelle Eubank, being duly sworn as the City Clerk for the City of Marshall, hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the resolution adopted by the 
City Council, City of Marshall, County of Calhoun, State of Michigan, at a regular meeting 
held on April 3, 2023 and that the said meeting was conducted and that the minutes of 
the meeting were kept and will be or have been made available.

__________________________
Michell Eubank, City Clerk

Page 150 of 215



Page 151 of 215



Page 152 of 215



Page 153 of 215



Page 154 of 215



Page 155 of 215



Page 156 of 215



Page 157 of 215



Page 158 of 215



Page 159 of 215



Page 160 of 215



Page 161 of 215



Page 162 of 215



Page 163 of 215



Page 164 of 215



Page 165 of 215



Page 166 of 215



Page 167 of 215



 

ITEM: 12.E 
ADMINISTRATIVE REPORT 

 
  

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 
FROM: Derek N. Perry, City Manager 
DATE: April 17, 2023  
SUBJECT: MARSHALL HOUSE PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT  
  
 
Following the termination of the sale agreement with the previous purchaser (Integra Property 
Group), we began working with our property broker, Affordable Housing Advisors, on an 
alternative buyer for the Marshall House property. Glick Family Housing previously expressed 
interest when the property was originally offered for sale and, fortunately, continued to have an 
interest in purchasing the property when contacted by the broker. Upon verification of their 
interest, we began negotiations on the Purchase and Sale Agreement (PSA) to effectuate the 
sale. 
  
The Purchase and Sale Contract for your consideration sets the purchase price at $9.5 million 
and allows for a 40-day feasibility period for the purchaser. As part of the PSA, the City is 
pledging to implement an acceptable PILOT ordinance as a condition of the purchase.   
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
The purchase price is $9.5 million. Upon finalization of the sale, a recommendation on the use 
of the proceeds will be provided to the City Council for your approval.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Purchase and Sale Contract with Gene B. Glick Family Housing Foundation, Inc. in 
substantial form and authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sign and submit the necessary 
documents. 
 

Page 168 of 215



Page 169 of 215



Page 170 of 215



Page 171 of 215



Page 172 of 215



Page 173 of 215



Page 174 of 215



Page 175 of 215



Page 176 of 215



Page 177 of 215



Page 178 of 215



Page 179 of 215



Page 180 of 215



Page 181 of 215



Page 182 of 215



Page 183 of 215



Page 184 of 215



Page 185 of 215



Page 186 of 215



Page 187 of 215



Page 188 of 215



Page 189 of 215



Page 190 of 215



Page 191 of 215



Page 192 of 215



Page 193 of 215



Page 194 of 215



Page 195 of 215



Page 196 of 215



 - 29 -  
 

ESCROW AGENT SIGNATURE PAGE 

The undersigned executes the Contract to which this signature page is attached for the purpose of 
agreeing to the provisions of the Contract applicable the Escrow Agent.  

ESCROW AGENT: 
 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE GUARANTY 
COMPANY 
 
 
By:  ___________________________________ 
Name: ___________________________________ 
Title: ___________________________________ 

 
 

  

Tatiana McFadden
Authorized Signatory

Page 197 of 215



 A-1 Purchase and Sale Contract 

   
  
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  
 

Page 198 of 215



 

 B-1 COVENANT DEED 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FORM OF DEED 
 

COVENANT DEED 

 

[] (“Grantor”), whose address is [], hereby sells, conveys, grants and bargains to [] 
(“Grantee”), whose address is [], the premises situated in [] more specifically described as: 

See Exhibit A  hereto 

for the sum set forth on the Real Estate Transfer Tax Valuation Affidavit filed herewith. 

Grantor, for itself, its successors and assigns, covenants, grants, bargains, and agrees to and 
with Grantee, its successors and assigns, that, subject to the exceptions set forth on Exhibit B 
hereto, Grantor has not done, committed or knowingly suffered to be done or committed any act, 
matter, or thing whatsoever, whereby the premises hereby granted, or any part thereof, is, or shall 
or may be, charged or encumbered in title, estate or otherwise. 

If the land being conveyed is unplatted, the following is deemed to be included: 

Grantor grants to Grantee the right to make _________________ 
(_________________) division(s) under Section 108 of the Land 
Division Act, Act No. 288 of the Public Acts of 1967, as amended.   

This property may be located within the vicinity of farmland or a 
farm operation.  Generally accepted agricultural and management 
practices which may generate noise, dust, odors, and other 
associated conditions may be used and are protected by the 
Michigan Right to Farm Act.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Covenant Deed on the date set forth 
below.  

[insert signature Grantor block and notary block at Closing] 

 

Page 199 of 215



 

 B-3 COVENANT DEED 
10990050v2  

Drafted by: 
 
     
     
     
 
When recorded return to: 
     
     
     

Send subsequent tax bills to:  Grantee 

Recording Fee:       

Transfer Tax:  See Real Estate Transfer Tax Valuation Affidavit 

Page 200 of 215



 

 C-1 BILL OF SALE 

   
  
 

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
FORM OF BILL OF SALE 

 
THIS BILL OF SALE (“Bill of Sale”) is made this ____ day of ____________, 2023 by the CITY 
OF MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, its address of 323 W. Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan, 49068 (“Seller”), in favor of GLICK MARSHALL HOUSE, LLC, an 
Indiana limited liability company (“Purchaser”). 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser entered into that certain Purchase and Sale Contract 
dated as of April ___, 2023 (the “Contract”) with respect to the sale of certain Property identified 
therein.  (Any capitalized term used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning set 
forth in the Contract). 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, Seller does hereby absolutely and unconditionally give, grant, bargain, 
sell, transfer, set over, assign, convey, release, confirm and deliver to Purchaser all of the Fixtures 
and Tangible Personal Property, in their “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition, 
without representation or warranty of any kind whatsoever except as set forth in and subject to the 
terms of the Contract. 

WITH RESPECT TO ALL MATTERS TRANSFERRED, WHETHER TANGIBLE OR 
INTANGIBLE, PERSONAL OR REAL, SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS A WARRANTY 
OF MERCHANTABILITY AND WARRANTY FOR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR 
ANY OTHER WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED THAT MAY ARISE BY 
OPERATION OF LAW OR UNDER THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE FOR THE 
STATE IN WHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED (OR ANY OTHER STATE). 

This Bill of Sale shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and permitted 
assigns of Purchaser and Seller. 

This Bill of Sale shall be governed by, interpreted under, and construed and enforceable in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan. 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 
 

Page 201 of 215



 

 C-2 BILL OF SALE 

   
  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Bill of Sale as of the day and year 
first written above. 

SELLER: 

CITY OF MARSHALL,  
a municipal public corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
Michelle Eubank, Clerk, City of Marshall 

 
 

Page 202 of 215



 

 D-1 GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

   
  
 

EXHIBIT D 
 

GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
 

This General Assignment and Assumption (this “Assignment”) is executed by the CITY 
OF MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, its address of 323 W. Michigan Avenue, 
Marshall, Michigan, 49068 (“Seller”), in favor of GLICK MARSHALL HOUSE, LLC, an 
Indiana limited liability company (“Purchaser”) as of ________, 2023 (the “Effective Date”). 

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser entered into that certain Purchase and Sale Contract 
dated as April ____, 2023 (the “Contract”) with respect to the sale of certain Property identified 
therein.  (Any capitalized term used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have the meaning set 
forth in the Contract). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Contract, Seller has agreed to assign, without recourse or 
warranty, to Purchaser all of Seller’s right, title and interest, if any, in and to the Miscellaneous 
Property Assets, the Permits (other than the Excluded Permits), and the Property Contracts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser agree as follows: 

1. Assignment.  As of the Effective Date, Seller hereby assigns, sells and transfers, 
without recourse or warranty, to Purchaser all of Seller’s right, title and interest, if any, in and to 
the Miscellaneous Property Assets, the Permits (other than the Excluded Permits), and the Property 
Contracts. 

2. Assumption.  As of the Effective Date, Purchaser expressly agrees to assume and 
hereby assumes all liabilities and obligations of the Seller which are to be performed or which 
become due on or after the Effective Date in connection with the Miscellaneous Property Assets, 
the Permits (other than the Excluded Permits), and the Property Contracts; provided, however, that 
to the extent that any Property Contract constitutes a Terminated Contract, Purchaser assumes such 
Property Contract only (a) through the effective date of the termination of such Property Contract 
pursuant to its express terms, and (b) to the extent of any cancellation fees, penalties or damages, 
including liquidated damages, due as a result of such termination. 

3. Seller Indemnity.  Seller hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
Purchaser from and against any and all costs, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses (excluding 
all attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses) incurred by Purchaser as a result of claims or causes of 
action arising out of or relating to Seller’s failure to perform any of the obligations on its part to 
be performed under the Miscellaneous Property Assets, the Permits (other than the Excluded 
Permits), and the Property Contracts occurring prior to the Effective Date.  

4. Purchase Indemnity.  Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Seller from and against any and all costs, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses 
(excluding all attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses) incurred by Seller as a result of claims or causes 
of action arising out of or relating to Purchaser’s failure to perform any of the obligations on its 

Page 203 of 215



 

 D-2 GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

   
  
 

part to be performed with respect to the Miscellaneous Property Assets, the Permits (other than the 
Excluded Permits), and the Property Contracts occurring on and after the Effective Date.  

5. Counterparts.  This Assignment may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts.  Signatures may be delivered by electronic delivery, and such signatures shall be 
binding on the parties hereto, with original signatures to be delivered as soon as reasonably 
practical thereafter. 

6. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event either party hereto commences litigation or arbitration 
against the other to enforce its rights hereunder, each party shall be responsible for its individual 
attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses, including expert witness fees and costs, during any litigation 
and appeals therefrom.  

7. Applicable Law.  This Assignment shall be governed by and interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

8. Binding Effect.  This Assignment shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

WITH RESPECT TO ALL MATTERS TRANSFERRED, WHETHER TANGIBLE OR 
INTANGIBLE, PERSONAL OR REAL, SELLER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY 
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND WARRANTY FOR FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR USE OR ANY OTHER WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED THAT MAY 
ARISE BY OPERATION OF LAW OR UNDER THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE FOR 
THE STATE IN WHICH THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED (OR ANY OTHER STATE) AND 
PURCHASER ACCEPTS ALL SUCH MATTERS IN THEIR “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL 
FAULTS” CONDITION. 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

 
 

Page 204 of 215



 

 D-3 GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

   
  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this General Assignment and 
Assumption as of the day and year first written above. 

SELLER: 

CITY OF MARSHALL,  
a municipal public corporation 
 
 
 
By:         
Michelle Eubank, Clerk, City of Marshall 

 
 
 

[Purchaser’s Signature Page Follows] 
 
  

Page 205 of 215



 

 D-4 GENERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 

   
  
 

PURCHASER: 
 

 GLICK MARSHALL HOUSE, LLC, an Indiana  
limited liability company 

 
By: GENE B. GLICK FAMILY HOUSING 

 FOUNDATION, INC., an Indiana non-profit 
 corporation, its sole member 
 
 
 By:        
  David O. Barrett, President and CEO 

 
 

Page 206 of 215



 

 E-1 ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES 
AND SECURITY DEPOSITS  

   
  
 

EXHIBIT E 
 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES AND SECURITY DEPOSITS 
 

This Assignment and Assumption of Leases and Security Deposits (this “Assignment”) is 
executed by the CITY OF MARSHALL, a Michigan municipal corporation, its address of 323 
W. Michigan Avenue, Marshall, Michigan, 49068 (“Seller”), in favor of GLICK MARSHALL 
HOUSE, LLC, an Indiana limited liability company (“Purchaser”) as of ___________, 2023 (the 
“Effective Date”). 

WHEREAS, Seller and Purchaser entered into that certain Purchase and Sale Contract 
dated as of April ___, 2023 (the “Contract”) with respect to the sale of certain Property more 
particularly described in the Contract.  (Any capitalized term used, but not otherwise defined 
herein, shall have the meaning set forth in the Contract). 

WHEREAS, Seller, as landlord, has entered into certain leases for the use of the Property 
by tenants (collectively, together with all amendments, modifications, supplements, restatements 
and guarantees thereof, the “Leases”). 

WHEREAS, the Contract requires Seller and Purchaser to execute this Assignment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, Seller and Purchaser hereby agree as follows: 

1. Assignment and Assumption.  As of the Effective Date, Seller hereby irrevocably 
assigns, sets over, transfers and conveys to Purchaser all of Seller’s right, title and interest in and 
to the Leases.  Purchaser hereby accepts this Assignment and the rights granted herein, and 
Purchaser hereby expressly assumes, for itself and its successors, assigns and legal representatives, 
the Leases and the Tenant Security Deposit Balance and all of the obligations and liabilities, fixed 
and contingent, of Seller thereunder accruing from and after the date hereof with respect to the 
Leases and the Tenant Security Deposit Balance and agrees to (i) be fully bound by all of the terms, 
covenants, agreements, provisions, conditions, obligations and liability of Seller thereunder, which 
accrue from and after the date hereof, and (ii) keep, perform and observe all of the covenants and 
conditions contained therein on the part of Seller to be kept, performed and observed, from and 
after the date hereof. 

2. Seller Indemnity.  Seller hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
Purchaser from and against any and all costs, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses (excluding 
all attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses) incurred by Purchaser as a result of claims or causes of 
action being brought against Purchaser, as Seller’s successor in interest to the Leases, arising out 
of or relating to Seller’s failure to perform any of the obligations under the Leases occurring prior 
to the Effective Date. 

3. Purchaser Indemnity.  Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Seller from and against any and all costs, damages, losses, liabilities and expenses 
(excluding all attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses) incurred by Seller as a result of claims or causes 

Page 207 of 215



 

 E-2 ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES 
AND SECURITY DEPOSITS  

   
  
 

of action being brought against Seller arising out of or relating to Purchaser’s failure to perform 
any of the obligations of the lessor under Leases occurring from and after the Effective Date or 
relating to any and all claims incurred by Seller with respect to the Security Deposits assigned 
herein. 

4. General Provisions. 

 a. Successors.  This Assignment shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding 
upon, the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. 

 b. Counterparts.  This Assignment may be executed in a number of identical 
counterparts.  Signatures may be delivered by electronic delivery, and such signatures shall be 
binding on the parties hereto, with original signatures to be delivered as soon as reasonably 
practical thereafter. 

 c. Governing Law.  This Assignment and the legal relations between the 
parties hereto shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State wherein the Property is located, without reference to the conflict of law provisions thereof. 

 d. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event either party hereto commences litigation or 
arbitration against the other to enforce its rights hereunder, each party shall be responsible for its 
individual attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses, including expert witness fees and costs, during any 
litigation and appeals therefrom. 

 
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.] 

 
 

Page 208 of 215



 

 E-3 ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASES 
AND SECURITY DEPOSITS  

   
  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Assignment and Assumption of 
Leases and Security Deposits as of the day and year first written above. 

SELLER: 

CITY OF MARSHALL,  
a municipal public corporation 
 
 
By:         
Michelle Eubank, Clerk, City of Marshall 
 

 
PURCHASER: 
 

 GLICK MARSHALL HOUSE, LLC, an Indiana  
limited liability company 

 
By: GENE B. GLICK FAMILY HOUSING 

 FOUNDATION, INC., an Indiana non-profit 
 corporation, its sole member 
 
 
 By:        
  David O. Barrett, President and CEO 

 
 
 

Page 209 of 215



 

 F-1 LEAD BASED PAINT DISCLOSURE 

   
  
 

EXHIBIT F 
 

LEAD-BASED PAINT DISCLOSURE 
 
EVERY PURCHASER OF ANY INTEREST IN RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY ON 
WHICH A RESIDENTIAL DWELLING WAS BUILT PRIOR TO 1978 IS NOTIFIED THAT 
SUCH PROPERTY MAY PRESENT EXPOSURE TO LEAD FROM LEAD-BASED PAINT 
THAT MAY PLACE YOUNG CHILDREN AT RISK OF DEVELOPING LEAD POISONING.  
LEAD POISONING IN YOUNG CHILDREN MAY PRODUCE PERMANENT 
NEUROLOGICAL DAMAGE, INCLUDING LEARNING DISABILITIES, REDUCED 
INTELLIGENCE QUOTIENT, BEHAVIORAL PROBLEMS, AND IMPAIRED MEMORY.  
LEAD POISONING ALSO POSES A PARTICULAR RISK TO PREGNANT WOMEN.  THE 
SELLER OF ANY INTEREST IN RESIDENTIAL REAL PROPERTY IS REQUIRED TO 
PROVIDE THE PURCHASER WITH ANY INFORMATION ON LEAD-BASED PAINT 
HAZARDS FROM RISK ASSESSMENTS OR INSPECTIONS IN THE SELLER’S 
POSSESSION, IF ANY, AND NOTIFY THE PURCHASER OF ANY KNOWN LEAD-BASED 
PAINT HAZARDS.  A RISK ASSESSMENT OR INSPECTION FOR POSSIBLE LEAD-
BASED PAINT HAZARDS IS RECOMMENDED PRIOR TO PURCHASE. 

 

Page 210 of 215



 

 Schedule 1-1   

   
  
 

SCHEDULE 1 
 

DEFINED TERMS 
 

1.1. Intentionally Omitted.    

1.2. Intentionally Omitted.  

1.3. Intentionally Omitted.  

1.4. Intentionally Omitted.  

1.5.  “Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday or Sunday or Federal 
holiday. 

1.6. “Closing” means the consummation of the purchase and sale and related 
transactions contemplated by this Contract in accordance with the terms and conditions of this 
Contract. 

1.7. “Closing Date” means the date on which date the Closing of the conveyance of the 
Property is required to be held pursuant to Section 5.1. 

1.8.  “Excluded Permits” means those Permits which, under applicable law, are 
nontransferable. 

1.9.  “Fixtures and Tangible Personal Property” means all fixtures, furniture, 
furnishings, fittings, equipment, machinery, apparatus, appliances and other articles of tangible 
personal property located on the Land or in the Improvements as of the Effective Date, to the extent 
transferable, and used or usable in connection with the occupation or operation of all or any part 
of the Property; provided, however, that the term “Fixtures and Tangible Personal Property” 
specifically excludes any of the foregoing to the extent (a) the same are not owned by Seller 
(including, without limitation, if the same are leased by Seller or are owned or leased by any Tenant 
or guest, employee or other person furnishing goods or services to the Property), or (b) the same 
are owned by Seller but are not used exclusively for the business, operation or management of the 
Property. 

1.10. “Improvements” means all buildings and improvements located on the Land. 

1.11. “Land” means all of those certain tracts of land located in the State of Michigan 
described on Exhibit A, and all rights, privileges and appurtenances pertaining thereto, as more 
particularly described in the Deed. 

1.12. “Lease(s)” means the interest of Seller in and to all leases, subleases and other 
occupancy contracts, whether or not of record, which provide for the use or occupancy of space or 
facilities on or relating to the Property and which are in force as of the Closing Date for the 
applicable Property. 

Page 211 of 215



 

 Schedule 1-2   

   
  
 

1.13.  “Miscellaneous Property Assets” means all assignable contract rights, leases, 
concessions, warranties, plans, drawings and other items of intangible personal property relating 
to the ownership or operation of the Property and owned by Seller, excluding, however, (a) 
receivables, (b) Property Contracts, (c) Leases, (d) Permits, (e) Fixtures and Tangible Personal 
Property, (f) cash or other funds, whether in petty cash or house “banks,” or on deposit in bank 
accounts or in transit for deposit, (g) refunds, rebates or other claims, or any interest thereon, for 
periods or events occurring prior to the Closing Date, (h) utility and similar deposits, (i) insurance 
or other prepaid items, (j)  any residual receipts account, (k) any capital replacement, repair or 
other reserves held by Seller, or any other party on behalf of or for the benefit of Seller, with 
respect to the Property, (l) Seller’s proprietary books and records, or (m) the Management 
Contract. The term “Miscellaneous Property Assets” also shall include all of Seller’s rights, if 
any, in and to the name “The Marshall House Apartments” and derivations thereof and to any 
internet domain name (but not the content of any website maintained by Seller or any of Seller’s 
affiliates), as they relate solely in connection with the Property (and not with respect to any other 
property owned or managed by Seller, Property Manager, or their respective affiliates) and all 
social media accounts. 

1.14. “Permits” means all licenses and permits granted by any governmental authority 
having jurisdiction over the Property owned by Seller and required in order to own and operate the 
Property. 

1.15.  “Prohibited Person” means any of the following:  (a) a person or entity that is 
listed in the Annex to, or is otherwise subject to the provisions of, Executive Order No. 13224 on 
Terrorist Financing (effective September 24, 2001) (the “Executive Order”); (b) a person or entity 
owned or controlled by, or acting for or on behalf of any person or entity that is listed in the Annex 
to, or is otherwise subject to the provisions of, the Executive Order; (c) a person or entity that is 
named as a “specially designated national” or “blocked person” on the most current list published 
by the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC”) at its official 
website, http://www.treas.gov/offices/enforcement/ofac; (d) a person or entity that is otherwise the 
target of any economic sanctions program currently administered by OFAC; or (e) a person or 
entity that is affiliated with any person or entity identified in clause (a), (b), (c) and/or (d) above. 

1.16. “Property” means (a) the Land and Improvements and all rights of Seller, if any, 
in and to all of the easements, rights, privileges, and appurtenances belonging or in any way 
appertaining to the Land and Improvements, (b) the Property Contracts, Leases, Permits (other 
than Excluded Permits), and the right, if any, of Seller in and to the Fixtures and Tangible Personal 
Property, and (c) the Miscellaneous Property Assets owned by Seller which are located on the 
Property and used in its operation. 

1.17. “Property Contracts” means all contracts, agreements, equipment leases, 
purchase orders, maintenance, service, or utility contracts and similar contracts, excluding Leases, 
regardless of whether entered into by Seller, Property Manager, or an affiliate of either, which 
relate to the ownership, maintenance, construction or repair and/or operation of the Property, 
whether or not assignable by their terms, but  not including (a) any national contracts entered into 
by Seller or Property Manager with respect to the Property (i) which terminate automatically upon 
transfer of the Property by Seller, or (ii) which Seller, in Seller’s sole discretion, elects to terminate 

Page 212 of 215



 

 Schedule 1-3   

   
  
 

with respect to the Property effective as of the Closing Date, or (b) any cellular phone contract or 
property management contract for the Property.  Property Contracts shall not include forward or 
similar long-term contracts to purchase electricity, natural gas, or other utilities, which contracts 
shall be “Utility Contracts” governed by the provisions of Section 0. 

1.18.  “Property Manager” means the current City Manager of Seller, owner of the 
Property. 

1.19. “Rent-Ready Conditions” means the physical to which Seller, in the ordinary 
course of its business, would prepare Tenant Units in anticipation of renting such Tenant Units to 
prospective Tenants.  

1.20.  “Tenant” means any person or entity entitled to occupy any portion of the Property 
under a Lease. 

1.21. “Tenant Deposits” means all security deposits, prepaid rentals, cleaning fees and 
other refundable deposits and fees collected from Tenants, plus any interest accrued thereon, paid 
by Tenants to Seller pursuant to the Leases.  Tenant Deposits shall not include any non-refundable 
deposits or fees paid by Tenants to Seller, either pursuant to the Leases or otherwise. 

1.22.  “Tenant Unit” means each apartment in the Property which is leased by Seller to 
Tenants in the ordinary course of Seller’s business.  

1.23. “Third-Party Reports” means any reports, studies or other information prepared 
or compiled for Purchaser by any Consultant or other third-party in connection with Purchaser’s 
investigation of the Property.  

1.24. “Written Notice” Whether capitalized or not, means written correspondence 
delivered to the receiving party in the manner described in Section 13.6 of the Contract.

Page 213 of 215



 

Schedule 3.5.1-1 
 

SCHEDULE 3.5.1 
LIST OF MATERIALS 

 
IN ALL INSTANCES, THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS WILL BE DELIVERED ONLY TO THE EXTENT 
THE SAME EXIST AND ARE IN SELLER’S POSSESSION OR REASONABLE CONTROL. 
 
PROPERTY RELATED ITEMS 

A. Seller’s form of residential lease agreement and copies of tenant files (available on site). 
B. All Property Contracts, equipment leases, and vendor lists with contact names and contact information. 
C. Any property locator or similar agreements (other than agreements with the Property Manager), if any, 

pertaining to the marketing and advertisement of the Property for leasing (and payment of commissions in 
connection therewith). 

D. All engineering studies, environmental reports, physical needs assessment reports, termite inspections, and 
appraisals to the extent available and in Seller’s possession, which relate to the Property and were prepared 
for Seller by third parties. 

E. To the extent in Seller’s possession, ad valorem and personal property tax statements for the current year 
and prior two (2) years and the status of any pending appeal. 

F. Current Rent Roll in Microsoft Excel Format that shows units on notice to vacate, vacant rented, etc. 
G. Unit Address List with unit numbers and mailing addresses for each unit in Microsoft Excel format. 
H. Current Income Statements for the Property and for the three (3) years prior to the year in which the 

Effective Date occurs. 
I. Current Year Budget 
J. Copies of Existing Certificates of Insurance (Including Flood and all other types available) 
K. Copies of Existing FEMA elevation certificates. 
L. A summary of pending insurance claims and pending litigation and for the three (3) years prior to the year 

in which the Effective Date occurs, if any, provided that such summary shall be prepared to Seller’s 
knowledge and Seller makes no representations or warranties regarding the outcome of such claims or 
litigation. 

M. Insurance company loss runs for the three (3) years prior as well as copies of any active workman’s comp 
claims. 

N. To the extent available and in Seller’s possession, guaranties or warranties with respect to the Property, if 
any. 

O. Seller’s ACM plan, lead in water O&M, lead based paint O&M plans and other O&M plans, if any. 
P. Copies of any certificates of occupancy and/or other Permits, to the extent available and in Seller’s 

possession. 
Q. Seller’s plans and specifications for the Property including general site plan. 
R. Utility bills for the past two (2) years. 
S. An inventory of the Fixtures and Tangible Personal Property, including and noting any Fixtures or Tangible 

Personal Property that Seller desires to retain after Closing, if any. 
T. A concessions report. 
U. A security deposit report. 
V. Prepaid balance report listing all residents with credit balance. 
W. Listing of accrued security deposit interest per tenant if applicable. 
X. A delinquency report. 
Y. A traffic/occupancy turnover. 
Z. Listing of any fees taken for future move-ins 
AA. Maintenance records for each unit for a minimum of the past three (3) years. 
BB. A minimum three (3) year history of all capital improvements, including any unit improvements. 
CC. Listing of current on-site employees, their job description and compensation. 
DD. Copy of incident/accident and crime related reports on the property for the past two (2) years 
EE. Property brochures and floorplans 
FF. Report detailing age of water heaters, condensers, and major appliances, estimates of remaining useful life 

for all, and estimated annual failure rate. 

Page 214 of 215



 

Schedule 3.5.1-2 
 

GG. A traffic generation/conversion rate report from currently used internet marketing sources (Apartment 
Guide, For Rent, etc.). 

HH. Copies of any previously received bids for major asphalt/concrete drive and parking repairs. 
II. Copy of any recent lighting study 
JJ. Report that includes resident income and demographics 
KK. Resident Selection Plan 

 
HUD RELATED ITEMS 

A. A current HAP contract and all correspondence with HUD regarding management review (MOR) and 
REAC inspections for prior three (3) years. 

B. Original HAP Contract 
C. Copy of Regulatory Agreement 
D. Copy of most recent HAP voucher. 
E. Contact information for HUD Project Manager. 
F. Property TRACS mail ID.  Is this ID property specific or portfolio specific? 
G. Copy of most recent Rent Study if applicable 
H. All other relevant HUD documents reasonably requested by Purchaser. 
I. Copy of the closing transcript from the Property's Mark to Market closing.  
J. Current Waiting List showing original date and time of application, income, and approval status 
K. Copy of most recent Management Certification – HUD Form 9839-B 
L. Copy of most recent Affirmative Fair Housing Marketing Plan 
M. Copy of 504 Self Evaluation Plan 
N. Copy of 504 Transition Plan 
O. Copy of the Closing  

 

Page 215 of 215


	7) CONSENT AGENDA
	A. City Council MinutesWork Session- April 3, 2023Reg
	April 3, 2023 City Council Work Session Minutes
	April 3, 2023 City Council Regular Session Minutes

	B. City BillsPurchases- 3/31/2023$52,445.78Purchases-
	Purchases- 3/31/2023
	Purchases- 4/4/2023
	Purchases- 4/6/2023
	Purchases-  4/18/2023


	10) PUBLIC HEARINGS & SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION 
	A. PA 425 CONDITIONAL LAND TRANSFER REQUESTS (MARSHAL
	Administrative Report
	PA 425 Transfer Resolution_04_17_2023
	Request Letter
	16-290-021-01 Packet
	16-290-021-02 Packet
	16-290-021-03 Packet
	16-290-021-04 Packet
	16-290-021-05 Packet
	16-201-018-00 Packet
	16-290-012-00 Packet
	16-290-015-00 packet
	16-281-015-00 Packet
	16-281-015-01, 16-281-015-02, 16-281-015-05 Packet
	16-281-015-04 & 16-281-015-03  Packet
	16-190-006-01, 16-193-003-00, 16-193-006-00, 16-193-009-00, 16-300-006-00, 16-300-018-00, 16-300-021-00 Packet
	Public Notice

	B. 421/423 MITCHELL SPECIAL LAND USE
	421/423 Mitchell Street Special Land Use
	100895 - SITE PLAN 4-8-23
	Administrative Report
	site plan application


	12) REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS
	A. SITE PLAN REVIEW CONTRACT FOR BLUEOVAL BATTERY PAR
	Administrative Report
	Progressive Site Plan Review Proposal

	B. SCHEDULE REZONING PUBLIC HEARING FOR 425 PARCELS F
	Administrative Report
	Parcel 53-281-021-00 rezoning CC notice
	22367-Land Division East-11x17-11x17
	Ordinance 2023-08 - Rezoning of parcel 53-281-021-00

	C. Community Risk Assessment & Reduction Grant applic
	Administrative Report
	CRA Grant Application 04_17_23
	CRA Grant Narrative 04_17_23
	CRA Grant Support Letter 04_17_23

	D. P.A. 116 PROGRAM TERMINATION- PROPERTY OWNER REQUE
	Administrative Report
	PA 116 Program Termination Resolution
	Application for Termination signed 4-5-23

	E. MARSHALL HOUSE PURCHASE AND SALE CONTRACT
	Administrative Report
	Marshall House PSA FINAL_Seller & Title Co Executed





